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Audit report

To the shareholders of Vector Limited

We have audited the financial statements on pages 5 to 71. The financial statements provide
information about the past financial performance and financial position of the company and
group as at 30 June 2010. This information is stated in accordance with the accounting policies
set out on pages 13 to 22,

Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the company and group as at 30 June 2010 and the results
of their operations and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Auditors’ responsibilities

It is our responsibility to express an independent opinion on the financial statements presented
by the Directors and report our opinion to you.

Basis of opinion

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. It also includes assessing:

o the significant estimates and judgements made by the Directors in the preparation of the
financial statements;

e whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s and group’s
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We conducted our audit in accordance with New Zealand Auditing Standards. We planned and
performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to obtain reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from material misstatements, whether caused by fraud or error. In
forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in
the financial statements.

Our firm has also provided other services to the company and certain of its subsidiaries in
relation to general accounting services. Partners and employees of our firm may also deal with
the company and group on normal terms within the ordinary course of trading activities of the
business of the company and group. These matters have not impaired our independence as
auditors of the company and group, The firm has no other relationship with, or interest in, the
company or any of its subsidiaries.



Unqualified opinion
We have obtained all the information and explanations we have required.
In our opinion:

* proper accounting records have been kept by the company as far as appears from our
examination of those records;

» the financial statements on pages 5 to 71:
- comply with New Zealand generally accepted accounting practice;

- give atrue and fair view of the financial position of the company and group as at 30 June
2010 and the results of their operations and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Our audit was completed on 27 August 2010 and our unqualified opinion is expressed as at that
date,

Kué

Auckland



Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2010

GROUP PARENT
In respect of continuing operations:
Qperaling revenue 3 1,185,827 1,173,947 645,582 632.680
Other income 3 1,613 211 1,002 184
Total income 1,187,440 1,174,158 646,564 632,864
Eleclricily transmission expenses {128,842) (118,461) (128,842) (118.461)
Gas purchases and produclicn expenses {267,055) (262.431) -
Network and asset maintenance expenses {73,716) {80,179) {41,744} (49,586)
Personnel expenses {62,808} {54,225) (59,727) {57,310}
Olher expenses (76,676) {76.684) {50,514} (49,761)
Operating expenditure 4 {609,297) {591,980 {280,827) {275,118)
Earnings before interest, income tax, deprecialion and 578,143 582,178 365,757 357 746
amortisation (EBITDA)
Deprecialion and amoriisation 5 {156,319) (145,362) (96,090) {86,902)
Profit before interest and income tax 421,824 436,816 269,667 270,844
Finance income 6 7,456 16,144 5,310 17.090
Finance cosls 6 (174,429) {205,684) (176,479) (207,060)
Share of nel {loss)/profit from associales 17 (2,305) 1,208
Impairment of inveslment in associate 17 {4,136) (6,519) (4,138) (6.519)
Profit before income tax 248,410 241,965 98,362 74,355
Income lax expense 7 {49,292 (68,210) (5,413) (18,959)
Profit after income tax from continuing operations 198,118 173,755 92,949 55,396
Profit/{loss) after income tax from discontinued operations 1 - 205,586 . {2,015)
Net profit for the period 199,118 379,341 92,949 53,381
Net profit for the pericd attributable to:
Non-controlling interesls in subsidiaries 5,650 5681 . .
Shareholders of the parenl 193,468 370,460 92,949 53.381
GROUP

2010 2009
Basic and diluted earnings per share {cents)
Conlinuing operations 12 19.4 16.5
Disconiinued operalicns 12 5 20.6
Total 19.4 3741




Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2010

GROUP PARENT

2010 2008 2010 2009

$000 $000 $000 $000
Net profit for the period 199,118 379,341 92,949 53,381
Clher comprehensive income net of tax
Change in fair value of cash flow hedges (32,950 (76,242} (32,950} (76,242)
Translation of foreign operations 38 B1 o -
Other comprehensive income for the period net of tax (32,912) (76,161) (32,950) (76,242)
Total comprehensive income for the period net of tax 166,206 303,180 59,999 {22.861)
Total comprehensive income for the period attributable to:
Non-conlralling interests in subsidiaries 5,650 8.881 S o
Shareholders of the parent 160,556 294,299 59,999 (22,861}




Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 30 June 2010

FOREIGN
ISSUED CURRENCY NORN-
SHARE TREASURY HEDGE  TRANSLATION RETAINEC ~ CONTROLLING TOTAL
GROUP CAPITAL SHARES RESERVE RESERVE EARNINGS INTERESTS EQUITY
2010 oS $000 5000 3000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Balance al beginning of the period 874,979 {8,934) {78,011) 210 1,253,768 16,881 2,058,893
Comprehensive income
Ned profil for lhe period - - - - 193,468 5,650 199,118
Other comprehensive income
Change in fair value of cash llow hedges - (42,669} (42,669)
Translation of foreign operalions - - a8 - - as
Income (ax relaling 1o components of
olher comprehensive income 10 - 9,719 9,719
Total comprehensive income - - {32,950) 38 193,468 5,650 166,206
Transactions with owners
Dividends 11 - - - {136,916) {3,975} (140,891}
Total transactions with owners - S {136,916} {3,975) {140,891}
Balance at end of the period 874,979 (8,934} {110,961} 248 1,310,320 18,556 2,084,208
FOREIGN
ISSUED CURRENCY NON-
SHARE TREASURY HEDGE  TRANSLATION RETAINED ~ CONTROLLING TOTAL
GROUP CARITAL SHARES RESERVE RESERVE EARNINGS INTERESTS EQuITy
2009 NOTE $000 5000 $000 $000 5000 5000 5000
Balance al beginning of the period 874,979 - {1.769) 129 1,015,513 12472 1.901,324
Comprehensive income
Nel profil for the period - - 370,460 8,881 379,341
Cther comprehensive Income
Change in fair value of cash fiow hedges - - (109,675) - = {109,675)
Translation of foreign operations - - = 81 - - B1
Income tax relating to components of
other comprehensive income 10 - 33,433 - - - 33433
Total comprehensive income - (76.242) 81 370.460 8.881 303,180
Transactions with owners
Treasury shares purchased 11 - {8,934) 2 - - - (8.934)
Dividends 1 - - - - {132,205) (4.472) {136,677
Total transactions with owners (8,934) - - (132,205} {4.472) (145,611)
Balance at end of the period 874,979 {8,934) {78,011) 210 1,253,768 16,881 2,058,893
GROUP
NOTE 20 2003
Total tangible assets per share {cents) 12 3955 3954
Net tangible assets per share {cents) 12 414 46.0




Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

for ihe year ended 30 June 2010

'gﬁﬂﬁﬁ’ TREASURY HEDGE RETAINED TOTAL
PARENT CAPITAL SHARES RESERVE EARNINGS EQUITY
2010 NOTE 5000 3000 5000 $000 5000
Balance at beginning of the period 874,979 (8,934} {78,011) 727,509 1,515,543
Comprehensive income
Net profil for the period - ) 92,949 92,949
Other comprehensive Income
Change in fair value of cash flow hedges - (42,669) - (42,669)
Income fax relaling to componenls of
olher comprehensive income 10 - - 9,719 - 9,719
Total comprehensive income - ) (32,950} 92,549 59,999
Transactions with owners
Dividends 11 - - - {136,916) (136,916)
Total transactions with owners - - {136,916) {136,916)
Balance at end of the period 874,979 (8,934) (110,961) 683,542 1,438,626

ISSUED

SHARE TREASURY HEDGE RETAINED TOTAL
PARENT CAPITAL SHARES RESERVE EARNINGS EQUITY
2009 NOTE 5000 $000 3000 $000 $000
Balance at beginning of the penod 874,579 - (1,769 806,333 1,679,543
Comprehensive income
Net profit for the period - - - 53.381 53,381
Other comprehensive income
Change in fair value of cash flow hedges - - (109,675) - {109,675)
Income tax relating lo components of
oclher comprehensive income 10 - 33,433 - 33433
Total comprehensive income - - {76,242) 53,381 {22,861}
Transactions with owners
Treasury shares purchased ik - {8.934) - - {8.934)
Dividends 1 - 2 - (132,205) {132,205}
Total transactions with owners - (8,934) - {132,205 {141.139)
Balance at end of the period 874,979 (8,934) {(78,011) 727 509 1,515,543




Statement of Financial Position
as al 30 June 2010

GROUP PARENT
2010 2009 2010 2009

NOTE $000 $000 $000 5000
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 114,812 54,690 96,791 38,738
Shor term deposits - 100,000 = 100,000
Receivables and prepayments 13 163,767 190,633 98,966 107,184
Dertvative financial instruments 28 11 208 11 208
Invenlories 14 4,204 2,208 KK] 58
Income tax 8 35,193 43,606 34,838 43,606
Advances lo subsidiaries 30 - - 637,868 456,479
Total current assets 317,987 391,345 868,507 746,273
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Receivables and prepaymenls 13 1,428 5,890 1,428 5,890
Derivalive financial instruments 28 50,344 51,345 50,344 51,345
Deferred tax asset g 2,700 1137 5 -
Investments in subsidiaries 16 - - 1,407,346 1,403 536
Income lax 8 448 - - S
Invesimenls in associales 17 25,525 28,193 16,374 17,511
intangible assels 19 1,642,228 1,601,095 554,770 557,838
Property, plant and equipmenl 20 3,540,245 3,459,587 2,572,755 2,523,722
Total non-current assets 5,232,918 5,147 247 4,603,017 4,559 842
Total assets 5,550,905 5,538,502 5,471,524 5.306,115
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables and accruals 21 189,131 179,887 129,464 119,606
Provisions 22 16,625 17,384 5,048 5439
Derivalive financial instruments 28 8,362 2,099 8,362 2,089
Barrowings 27 249,654 575 249,079 -
Income {ax 8 1,428 2,370 . -
Advances from subsidiaries 30 - 797,884 545017
Total current liabilities 465,400 202,315 1,189,837 672,161
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables and accruals 21 25,821 27137 708 943
Provisions 22 3,000 1,000 o
Derivative financial insirumenls 28 181,815 103,671 181,815 103,671
Borowings 27 2,312,644 2,639,781 2,312,644 2,839,781
Deferred tax liabilily 10 478,017 505,795 347,894 374,016
Total non-current liabilities 3,001,297 3,277,384 2,843,061 3,118,411
Total liabilities 3,466,697 3479699 4,032,898 3,790,572
EQUITY
Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent 2,065,652 2,042012 1,438,626 1,515,543
Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries 18,556 16,881 R
Total equity 2,084,208 2,058,893 1,439,626 1,515,543
Total equity and liabilities 5,550,905 5,536,592 5,471,524 5,306,115




Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2010

GROUP PARENT
2010 2009 2010 2008
NOTE $000 $000 $000 $000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash provided from:
Receipls from cuslomers 1,214,575 1,170,655 612,042 577,882
Interes| portion of repayments on finance leases 108 117 108 117
Interest received on deposils 7,142 14,841 6,096 14,480
Income fax refund 9 19 9 i,
Dividends received from associate 200 o 200 -
1,222,034 1,185,632 618,455 592,479
Cash applied lo:
Paymenls to suppliers and employees (611,840} (579,668) (272,954) (256,820
Income tax paid (61,564) {62,424) {56,203) {67,051)
Inlerest paid on finance leases (422) (633} (44) {54)
Inferest paid (180,670) {212,570) {180,529} {212.570)
(854,496) {855,295) (509,730 {526,495)
Net cash flows from operating activities 367,538 330,337 108,725 65,984
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash provided from:
Advances from/repaid by subsidiaries - - 3N 428 1,135,086
Proceeds from sale of properly, plant and equipmenl and software 990 557 802 390
Bank balapcgs acquired on acquisition of Advanced Melering 132 i . i
Services Limited
Nel proceeds from sale of disconlinued operalions 15 - 772950 o -
1,122 773,507 372,230 1,135,476
Cash applied {o:
Advances lo/repaid lo subsidiaries - - (207,691) {206,534)
SP;lfgaarze and conslruclion of property, planl and equipmenl and (220,404} (237.107) (137,703) (149.503)
Acquisition of gas businesses {1,253) = .
Repaymenl of loan {rom third parly (3,500) 5 o .
Purchase of invesimenl in associate 17 (7,103) - {7,103}
Loans to associales (6,500} (4.450) {6,500) (4,450)
Loan repaid by associale 6,500 - 6,500
(232,260) (241.557) {352,497) {360,487)
Net cash flows (used in)ffrom investing activities (231,138) 531,950 19,733 774,989
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Cash Flow Statement (continued)
for lhe year ended 30 June 2010

GROUP PARENT
2010 2008 2010 2008
$000 $000 $000 $000
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash provided from/(applied to):
Proceeds from borrowings 54,000 245,000 54,000 245,000
Repayment of barrowings {87.402) {855,000) (87,402) {855,000}
Wilhdrawal of short lerm deposils 100,000 200,000 100,000 200,000
Short term deposits {300,000} - {300,000)
Debt raising cosls incurred (3.763) - (3,763)
Capilal porlion of payments under finance leases {1,995) (1.817) {97) {9%)
Capttal portion of receipls on finance leases 10 13 10 13
Dividends paid lo shareholders of lhe parent {136,916) (132,205) {136,916) {132,205)
Dividends paid o non-controlling interests in subsidiaries {3,975) {4,472) - -
Purchase of lreasury shares (8,934) (8,934)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (76,278) {861.178) (70,405} (854,984}
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 60,122 1,109 58,053 (14.011)
Cash and cash equivalents al beginning of the period 54,690 53,581 38,738 52,749
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 114,812 54,690 96,791 38,738
Cash and cash equivalents comprises:
Bank balances 54,812 19,690 36,791 3738
Shorl lerm deposits maturing within three monlhs 60,000 35,000 60,000 35,000
114,812 54,690 96,791 38,738

1



Cash Flow Statement (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2010

GROUP PARENT
2010 2009 2010 2000
NOTE $00 $000 £000 $000
RECONCILIATION OF NET PROFIT TO NET CASH FLOWS
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit for the period 199,118 379,341 92,949 53,381
ITEMS CLASSIFIED AS INVESTING ACTIVITIES
il:I:at rl1:|st?| :Sn disposal of property, plant and equipmenl and sofiware 4,676 12,021 2,910 8711
Gain on sale of disconlinued operations - {202,902) 5
4,676 {190,881} 2,910 8711
NON-CASH ITEMS
Depreciation and amoriisalion 156,319 145,362 96,090 86,902
Impairment of investment in associate 17 4136 6,519 4,136 6,519
Managemenl fee income Kll| - - {41,548) {43,394)
Non-cash pordion of finance costs (7,828) 1,492 {8,276} 1,822
Nel impact on'profit _or_loss of acquisilion of Advanced - = 1,794 -
Melenng Services Limited '
{Decrease)increase in deferred tax liability (20,882) 4,801 {16,403) 5.863
(Decrease)fincrease in provisions {962) (11.060) (391) 177
Share of net loss/{profii} of associales 17 2,305 (1,208} .
133,088 145,806 35,402 57.889
CASH ITEMS NOT IMPACTING PROFIT
Dividend received from associale 200 - - S
200 - o -
MOVEMENT IN WORKING CAPITAL
(Decrease)fincrease in payables and accruals {3,268) 5,560 3,597 (4,250)
{Increase)/decrease in invenlories {1,996) 5,168 25 {44)
Decreasef(increase) in receivables and prepayments 27,102 {17,856) B,220 {5,138}
Decreasef{increase) in net ncome tax assels 8,618 3,099 {34,378) {44,565)
30,456 {4.029) (22,536) {53,997
Net cash flows from operating activities 367,538 330,337 108,725 65,984
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Statement of Accounting Policies
for the year ended 30 June 2010

REPORTING ENTITY

Vecior Limited is a company domiciled in New Zealand and regisiered under the Companies Acl 1993 and is lisled on (he New Zealand Stock
Exchange (NZX). Vector Limited is an 1ssuer for the purposes of the Financial Reporting Act 1993 and ils financial stalements comply wilh that Acl. The
financial statements of Lhe group are for the year ended 30 June 2010 and were aulhorised for issue by the directors on 27 August 2010.

Veclor Limited is a profit-oriented entily involved in (he infrastruciure sector in New Zealand. lis primary operalions include eleclricily distribulion, gas
Iransportation, nalural gas and LPG sales, gas processing, melering and telecommunicalions. Veelor Limited is a 75.1% owned subsidiary of the
Auckland Energy Consumer Trusl which is the ulimale parent enlity for the group.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial slalemenls have been prepared in accordance with NZ GAAP. The financial stalemenls for Vector Limiled {the parent} and consolidated
financial statements are presented. The consolidated financial slalemenis comprise lhe parent and ils subsidiaries {the group) and the group's share of
any inlerest in associales, parinerships and joint venlures.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The financial statemenls comply wilh New Zealand equivalenis lo Intemalional Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS), and olher applicable
Financial Reporting Standards, as appropriate lor profil-oriented eniilies. The financial statements comply with Inlemalional Financial Reporling
Standards.

MEASUREMENT BASE
The financial slalemenis have been prepared on Lhe historical cosl basis except for lhe following items, which are measured at fair value:

- the identifiable assels, liabililies and confingent liabililies acquired in a business combinalion, explained furlher below: and

- financial inslruments, also explained further below.

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In accordance with the revised IAS 1 Presenlalion of Financial Statements (2007}, which became effective for financial periods cormmencing on or afler
1 January 2009, movemenls in equily resulling from {ransaclions cther than [hose with owners are presenled in a statement of comprehensive income
and movements in equily resulting from lransactions wilh owners are presenled in a statement of changes in equily. Since this change in accounling
policy only impacls presentalion aspects, there are no impacls on lhe income stalement, ihe statement of financial position or the cash flow stalemenl.
Comparative information has been re-presenled so that it conforms to the revised siandard.

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY
These financial slalements are presented in New Zealand dollars {8), which is the parent’s funclional currency. All financial informalion presented in
New Zealand dollars has been rounded to lhe nearest thousand, unless otherwise staled.

JUDGEMENT USED IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The preparalion of these financial statemenls in compliance with NZ IFRS requires managemeni to make judgemenls, estimates and apply
assumplions that affect the applicalion of accounling policies and the reporled amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The eslimales and
associated assumplions have been based on historical experience and other factors and are believed to be reasonable. These estimalions and
assumplions have formed the basis for making judgements on he carrying values of some assels and liabililies. Aciual resulls may differ from lhese
eslimates. Eslimales and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions lo accounling eslimates are recognised in the period in
which lhe estimale is revised and in the future periods affecled. In pariicular, information about the significanl areas of eslimalion uncertainly and
crilical judgemenls in applying accounting policies (hat have had a significani effeci on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are
described below.

Judgements used in applying accounting policies

Revenue recognition

The liming of customer paymenls for services does nol always coincide wilh the timing of delivery of these services. For example customers may pay
for services some time after lhe services are delivered. Customers may also prepay for services. Judgemenl is therelore required in deciding when
revenue is to be recognised. Where the relationship between the payments and muliiple services delivered under {he related contract is nol immediately
clear, management must apply judgement in unbundling elements of the coniracl and allocating payments lo the respeclive services before applying
the revenue recognition accounling policy.

Classification of investments

Classifying investmenls as eilher subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures or available-for-sale financial assels requires management to judge the degree
of influence which the group holds over the invesiee. Management look at many faclors in making these judgements, such as examining the
consiitutional documenls that govern decision making, governance around current and fulure representation amongst the board of direciors, and also
olher less formal amangemenis which can lead to having influence on the operating and financial policies. These judgements impact upon the basis of
consolidalion accounting which is used to recognise the group's invesltments in the consolidaled financial slalements. Further information regarding the
bases of consolidation is included in the following seclion on Significant Accounling Policies.
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Statement of Accounting Policies
for the year ended 30 June 2010

JUDGEMENT USED IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY {continued)

Judgements used in applying accounting policies (¢continued)

Classification of expenditure in relation to property, plant and equipment

On initial recognition of ilems of property, ptant and equipmen, judgements must be made about whelher costs incurred relate to bringing the ilems to
working condilion for lheir inlended use, and therefare are appropriate for capilalisabion as part of the cost of ihe ilem, or whether Ihey should be
expensed as incurred. As required by NZ 1AS 16, Property, Piant and Equipment, management musi exercise (heir judgemenl to assess lhe amount of
overhead costs which can be reasonably direclly atlribuled to the conslruclion or acquisition of items of property, planl and equipment. For example,
employee cosls arising direclly from such aclivities are capilalised within the initial cos{ of property, plant and equipmenl. Thereafter, judgemeni is also
required lo assess whelher subsequent expenditure increases the fulure economic benefils lo be obtained from thal assel and is thereiore also
appropriate for capilalisalion or wheiher such expendilure should be treated as maintenance and expensed.

Sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are sources of estimation unceriainly where management have assessed there is a significant risk that a material adjusiment 1o the
carrying amounts of the assels or liabilities involved could possibly occur wilhin the year ended 30 June 2011.

Valuation of goodwill and property, plant and equipment

Al 30 June 2010, the camying value of goodwill is $1,554.3 million. The carrying value of goodwill is assessed al least annually fo ensure Lhat it is nol
impaired. Performing this assessmenl generally requires management to estimale fulure cash flows to be generated by operaling segments o which
goodwill has been allocated. Estimaling future cash flows entails making judgements including the expected rale of growlh of revenues, margins
expecled lo be achieved, the level of future mainlenance expenditure required to supporl these oulcomes and the appropriate discount rate lo apply
when discounling future cash flows. Note 19 of these financial stalemenls provides more information surrounding the assumptions management have
made in ihis area.

Managemenl mus| also consider whether any indicalors of impairment have occurred which might require impairmenl tesling of the cument carrying
values of property, planl and equipment. Al 30 June 2010, lhe carrying value of properly, plant and equipment is $3,540 2 million. Assessing whether
individual assets or a grouping of relaled assels (which generale cash flows co-dependently) are impaired may involve estimaiing ihe fulure cash flows
thal those assels are expecled lo generate. This will in lum involve assumptions, including rales of expecled revenue growth or decline, expecled
future margins and Lhe seleclion of an appropriale discounl rale for discounting future cash flows.

QOulcomes in |he next financial period may be differenl to the assumplions made. Il is impracticable to quaniily ihe impact should assumplions be
materially differenl to actual outcomes, which may result in material adjustments 1o the carrying amounts of goodwill and property, planl and equipment
reported in {hese financial stalements.

Valuation of financial instruments

Al 30 June 2010, the total carrying value of the group’s borrowings and derivaive financial instruments is a liability of $2,702.1 million. Managemenl
have eslimated he fair value of 1he group's financial inslruments based on valuation models thal use observable market inputs. Nole 28 of these
financial stalements provides a list of he key observable inpuls thal management have applied in reaching their estimales of the fair values of financial
instrumenls and also provides a sensilivity analysis detailing Lhe potenlial fulure impacis of reasonably possible changes in those observable inputs
over lhe nexi financial period.
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Statement of Accounting Policies
for the year ended 30 June 2010

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following specific accounling policies thal materially affect ihe measurement of profit or loss, comprehensive income, assels, liabilities, equily and
cash flows have been applied consislently to all periods presented in the financial stalemenls and consislently by group entilies.

A) BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are enfilies controlled, direclly or indireclly by Vector Limited. The financial slatemenis of subsidiaries are included in lhe
consolidated financial slatemenls using |he acquisilion method of consclidation.

Associates

Associales are enlities in which the group has significant infiluence bul nol conirol over the operaling and financial policies. The group's share of
lhe nel profit of associates is recognised in lhe income stalemenl after adjusling for differences, if any, between the accounling pelicies of the
group and lhe associales. The group's share of any olher gains and losses of associates charged direclly to equity is recognised in olher
comprehensive income. Dividends received from associales are credited fo lhe carrying ameunt of the investment in associales in lhe
consolidaled financial statements.

Jolnt ventures

Joint ventures are contraclual arrangemenls with other parlies which establish joint control for each of the parties over lhe related operalions,
assels or enlify. The group is jointly and severally liable in respecl of cosis and liabililies, and shares in any resulling oulpul. Where the joint
venfure is nol ilself a separate legal enfily, he group’s share of its assels, liabilities, revenues and expenses is incorporated in the separale
financial stalements of the company which directly participales as a venturer in the joinfly-controlled assets or operations. No furiher consolidalion
adjusimenls are Lhen required.

Partnerships

Parinerships are those relalionships that the group has wilh olher persons whereby the partners camy on a business in common wilh a view {o
generaling a profit. The group is joinlly and severally iiable in respect of cosls and liabilities incurred by the parinerships. Where the group has a
conirolling inlerest in a partnership, it is accounled for in the consolidated financial stalemenls as a subsidiary. Where the group has significant
influence bul nol control over the operating and financial policies of he partnership, it is accounted for in the consolidaled financial stalemenls as
an associale.

Acquisition or disposal during the period

Where an entity becomes or ceases io be a parl of the group during he period, (he resulls of the enlity are included in the consolidaled resulis
from ihe dale Lhat conlrol or significant influence commenced or until the dale Ihal conlrol or significant influence ceased. When an entily is
acquired all idenlifiable assets, liabililies and conlingenl liabilities are recognised al their fair value al acquisition dale. The fair value does nol lake
inlo consideration any future inlenlions by the group. All equily and debt raising costs incurred in relation to the acquisilion of a subsidiary or a
group of assets are accounled for in accordance with the accounling policy for financial inslruments. Where an enlity or a group of assels wilhin
an entily is held for sale, thal group of assels is recognised at the lower of lheir current carrying amount and fair value less cosls o sell, and when
subsequenlly disposed of, the gain or loss recognised in lhe income slalement is calculated as lhe difference between ihe sale price less cosls to
sell and Ihe carrying amount of the group of assets and any related goodwill.

Goodwill arising on obtaining conlrol of a subsidiary or an associate

Where an acquisilion results in obtaining control of a subsidiary or an associale for the first lime, the carrying amouni of any previous non-
conlrolling interest held by the group is first remeasured lo fair value and the difference between (he carrying amount and lhe remeasured {air
value is recognised in the income slalement Goodwill is hen calculaled as he sum of the fair value of the consideration paid, lhe remeasured
fair value of the non-conlrolling inferes| previously held by {he acquirer and the recognised amount of any remaining non-conlrolling interest in the
acquiree held by third parties less Ihe fair value of the tolal idenliliable assels and liabililies of the acquiree at ihe dale of (he acquisition.

if the fair value of the lolal identifiable assets and liabililies acquired exceeds the sum of the Fair value of the consideration paid, {he remeasured
fair vaiue of the non-conirolling interest previously held by the acquirer and the recagnised amouni of any remaining non-conlrolling interest in (he
acquiree held by third parties then a gain representing a bargain purchase is recognised in the income slaiement.

Goodwill arising on acquisition of an additional interest in an associate while retaining significant Influence

Where an acquisition resulls in the group obiaining an addilional non-conirolling interest in an associale while retaining significani influence,
goodwill is calculated as lhe difference between Lhe fair value of the consideralion paid and the amount of the group's acquired incremental share
of the fair values of lhe total idenlifiable assels and liabiiities of the acquiree ai the date of the acquisition.

If the group's acquired incremental share of the fair values of the acquiree’s lolal idenlifiable assels and liabililies exceeds lhe fair value of the
consideration paid, the excess is included in the share of net profit from associates in lhe income statement,

Subsequent measurement of goodwill

Subsequent to inilial recognition goodwill is lested annually for impairment. In respecl of asscciales, lhe carrying amount of goodwill is included in
the carrying amount of the invesiment,
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

A

B)

G

D)

E)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (continued)
Transactions eliminated on consolidation
The effects of intra-group transaclions are eliminaled in preparing the consolidated financial slalements.

Inira-group advances 1o and from subsidiaries are recognised al amorlised cos{ within currenl assels and current liabilities in the separale financial
slalements of ihe parent. Advances to subsidiaries from lhe pareni are repayable on demand. All inlra-group advances are gliminaled on
consolidation. Any inleresl income and interesl expense incurred on these advances is eliminaled in the income statemen on consolidation.

DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AS A RESULT OF A BUSINESS COMBINATION

The group’s accounling policies require ihe assessment of the fair value of the lotal identifiable assets and liabilities acquired when the group firs{
oblains control of those assels and liabilities as a resull of a business combination. In parlicular, a large proporiion of the group's properiy, planl
and equipmeni has been acquired in previous business combinalions. The fair values of these acquired assels have been eslablished for
dislribulion syslems on the basis of depreciated replacement cost and for alher properiy, planl and equipment on lhe basis of market value. On
adoption of Infernational Financial Reporting Slandards, Lhe group opled lo deem the hisloric cost of such properly, planl and equipmenl {o be
equal {o lhe assessed fair values. As a result, lhe group now reports property, planl and equipment on a historic cosl basis and does nol cary out
regular revalualions of property, planl and equipment.

REVENUE
Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideralion received or receivable, nel of relurns and allowances and excise
and cusloms impori dulies. Revenue is recognised when the significanl risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been {ransferred fo he
buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible relurn of goods can be estimaled reliably and there is no
conlinuing management involvement with the goods.

When ihe group acls in he capacily of an agent rather than as the principal in a Iransaclion, the revenue recognised is ihe net amouni of
commission made by the group.

Sale of services

Sales of services are recognised al fair value of the consideralion received or receivable as the services are delivered or lo reflect the percentage
completion of the relaled services where delivered over lime.

Customer contributions

Third parly conlribulions lowards the construclion of properly, plant and equipmenl are recognised in the income statement 1o reflect the
percentage complelion of construclion of those related ilems of propery, plant and equipment. Conlribulions received in excess of (hose
recognised in he income slalement are recognised as defemed income in the slatement of financial posilion. Where a portion of the conlribulion is
subject to rebales based on connection {argels, the expecled amount of future rebates is also recognised as deferred income in the statement of
financial posilion.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised in olher income on the date that the group's right to receive payment is eslablished, which in ihe case of quotled
secunlies 1s lhe ex-dividend dale.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Govemment grants are recognised inilially as deferred income when there are reasonable assurances that they will be received and that the group
will comply with ihe condilions associated with the granl. Granls (hat compensate the group for expenses incurred are recognised in lhe income
slatement on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are recognised. Granls thal compensate the group for the cost of
items of property, planl and equipmenl are recognised in the income stalement on a syslemalic basis lhrough a reduction in deprecialion over the
useful life of the ilems.

FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS
Finance income comprises interesi income on funds invesled. Finance income is recognised as il accrues.

Finance costs comprise inferes! expense on boowings, unwinding of the discount on provisions, net foreign currency gains and losses, changes
in the fair value of financial assets al fair value through profil or loss, impairmenl losses recognised on financial assels {excepl for trade
receivables) and net gains and losses on hedging instrumenls thal are recognised in profil or loss. Borrowing costs olher than those capilalised to
qualifying property, plant and equipmenl are recognised in ihe income slalemenl using the effeclive inlerest raie methad.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

F)

G)

H)

INCOME TAX
Incame tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Income lax assels and liabilities are lhe expected {ax payable or receivable on the taxable income for the year, using tax raies enacled or
substanlively enacted at balance dale, and any adjusiment to tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. During the financial period,
the income tax liability or asset is eslimaled based on the forecasl effective tax rate for that enlire financial period.

Income laxes that arise [rom ihe dislribution of dividends are recognised al the same lime as the liabifily lo pay the relaled dividend is recognised.

Deferred tax is recognised using lhe balance sheel method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assels and
liabililies for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for laxalion purposes Movements in deferred lax assels and liabilities are
recognised within lax expense in the income slalement unless the temporary difference initially arose in other comprehensive income in which
case {he movement is lhen aiso recognised as an adjustment in other comprehensive income against the ilem fo which the temporary difference
relales. Delerred tax is nol recognised for Lhe following lemporary differences: the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities in a Iransaction thal is nol a business combination and lhal affects neither accounting nor taxable profit and differences relating lo
invesimenls in subsidiaries, associales and joint venlures to the exlent thal the group is able 1o control the timing of reversal of the lemporary
differences and they probably will not reverse in the loreseeable fulure. Deferred lax is measured al the 1ax rales Ihat are expecled fo be applied
to the lemporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacled or subslanlively enacted at balance dale.

Deferred {ax assels including unuilised lax losses are recognised to the exlent that 1l is probable that future laxable profits will be available
against which temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred lax assels are reviewed at balance date and are reduced 1o the exlent thal it is no
longer probable Lhat lhe related tax benefil will be realised.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

Transaclions in foreign currencies are translaled o ihe respeclive funclional currencies of group enliies at exchange rates at the dales of lhe
ransaclions unless the transactions are hedged by foreign cumrency derivalive instruments. Foreign currency differences arising on lranslation are
recognised in {he income stalement. At balance date foreign monetary assets and liabilities are lranslated al the functional currency closing rate,
and exchange variaticns arising from these lranslalions are included in the income slatemenl

Non-monelary assels and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies thal are measured at historic cosl are nol refranslated al balance date.

Non-monelary assels and liabililies denominaled in foreign currencies that are measured al fair value are retranslated 1o the funclional currency at
ihe exchange rale al the date thal the fair value was determined and are not relranslaled al balance date.

The assels and liabililies of foreign operalions, including fair value adjuslmenls arising on acquisition, are translaled {o New Zealand dollars at
exchange rales al the balance date with the difference taken lo the foreign currency franslalion reserve. The income and expenses of foreign
operalions are {ranslaled to New Zealand dollars eilher al exchange rates al the dales of the transactions or at a period average exchange rate
which approximales lo the actual exchange rales during thal period.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Defined contribution plans

Obligalions for contributions lo defined coniribulion pension plans are recognised as an expense in lhe income statement when they are due.
Termination benefits

Termination benefils are recognised as an expense when ihe group is demonstrably commitled, wilhout realistic possibilily of wilhdrawal, to a
formal delailed plan 1o lerminale employmeni before the normal relirement date.

Short-term benefits
Short-ferm employee benefit cbligalions are measured on an undiscounled basis and are expensed as |he related service is provided,
An accrual is recognised for accumulating benefits which remain unused al balance dale.

A provision is recognised lor the amount expected lo be paid under short-tlerm cash bonus plans if Ihe group has a present legal or constructive
obligalion o pay lhis amount as a resull of past service provided by {he employee and the obligation can be estimaled reliably.

I} DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

J)

A discontinued operalion is a component of the group's business that represents a separale major line of business or geographical area of
operalions thal has been disposed of or is held for sale, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively wilh a view lo resale. Classification as a
discontinued operalion occurs upon disposal or when the operalion meels the crileria o be classified as held for sale, if earlier. The crileria are
mel when ihe operalion is available for immediale sale subject only to usual sale condilions for such operations and ils sale is highly probable.
When an operalion is classified as a disconiinued operation, the comparative income slalemenl is restated as if the operalion had been
discontinued [rom Lbe slart of Lhe comparalive period.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The group presents eamings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing the nel profit for the pericd altributable o
ordinary shareholders of lhe parenl by the weighled average number of ordinary shares held by shareholders of the parent during the period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

K)

L)

M)

N)

0)

SEGMENT REPORTING

An operating segment is a distinguishable component of the group whose operaling resulls are regularly reviewed by the group’s chief operaling
decision makers in order to assess performance and make decisions about resources to be aliocated 1o the segmenl.

INVENTORIES
Inventories are assets held for sale in the ordinary course of business.

Inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realisable vaiue. The cost of inventories is delermined on a first-in-first-out or weighted average
cosl basis and includes expendilure incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their exisling location and condition. Net realisable
value is ihe eslimated selling price less the eslimaled costs of completion and selling expenses.

IDENTIFIABLE INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the group's operaling segments, being the lowesi level al which the goodwill is monitored for inlemal management
purposes. Goodwill is lesled al least annually for rmpairment against the recoverable amouni of the operating segmenis lo which goodwill has
been allocated.

Easements

Easemenis are perpelual rights lo use land owned by olhers for a staled purpose and are classified as inlangible assels. Easements are nol
amorlised.

Software

Software [hal is nol integral to the funclicnality of the related hardware is classified as an inlangible asset. It is amorlised on a siraight line basis
over ils uselul life, commencing on lhe dale it is available for use. Software assels which are integral lo the operation of Lhe related hardware are
classified as computer equipment within property, plant and equipmenl. Software has a useful life of between 2 and 10 years.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Praperty, plant and equipmenl are tangible assels expected to be used during more than one financial period and include spares held for the
servicing of olher property, plant and equipment owned by the group.

The inilial cost of purchased property, plant and equipment is the value of lhe consideralion given Io acquire lhe properly, plant and equipmenl
and he value of other direclly aflribulable cosls, which have been incurred in bringing the property, plant and equipment lo the localion and
condition necessary for the intended service.

The inilial cosl of seli-constructed properly, plani and equipment includes the cosl of alt materials used in construclion, direct labour on Lhe project,
financing cosls that are atiribulable to the project, cosis of ultimalely dismanlling and removing the ilems and resloring ihe sile on which they are
located (where an obligalion exists 1o do so} and an appropriale proportion of lhe other directly aftributable overheads incurred in bringing the
ilems o working condilion for their infended use. Financing costs that would have been avoided if lhe expenditure on qualifying assels had nol
been made are capitalised while the construclion aclivities are in progress. Cosls cease to be capilalised as soon as ithe properly, planl and
equipment is ready for produclive use and do nol include any costs of abnormal waste.

Uninstalled properly, plant and equipment are slaled at the lower of cosl and eslimaled recoverable amount. Estimaled recoverable amount is the
greater of the estimaled amouni from lhe future use of Ihe propery, plani and equipmenl and its ullimale disposal, and iis fair value less cosls lo
sell.

Properly, plani and equipment is subsequenlly measured at cos! less accumulated depreciation and impairmenl losses.

Subsequent expenditure relaling to an item of properly, plani and equipmenl is added to ils gross carrying amouni when such expendilure can be
measured reliably and eilher increases the fulure economic benefits beyond its exisling service potential, or is necessarily incurred o enabie
fulure economic benefils lo be oblained, and Ihal expenditure would have been included in Ihe initial cost of the item had the expendilure been
incurred at thal time. The costs of day-lo-day servicing of properly, plant and equipment are recognised in the income statement as incured.

DEPRECIATION

Deprecialion of properly, plant and equipment, olher than gas lurbines and freehold land, is calculated on a siraight line basis so as fo expense
the cos! of the properly, plant and equipmenl, less any expecled residual value, Lo Ihe income slalement over its useful economic life.

Depreciation commences when the item of property, plant and equipment is brought inlo productive use, or when such ilems become available for
use.

Estimated

useful lives

Years

Buildings 40-100
Distribulion syslems 10-100
Molor vehicles and mobile equipment 3-20
Computer and telecommunication equipmenl 3-40
Eleclricity and gas meters 5-30
Cogeneralion assets (excluding gas {urbines) 10-20
Other planl and equipment 5-20
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

0)

F)

Q)

DEPRECIATION (continued)

Gas lurbines disclosed within cogeneration assets are depreciated on a units of production basis over a period of 20 years. All olher cogeneration
assels are depreciated on a straighi line basis over Lheir useful life.

LEASED ASSETS
Finance leases

Properly, plant and equipment under finance leases, where the group as lessee assumes substanlially all the risks and rewards of ownership, are
recognised as non-curren| assets in Lhe statement of financial position. Leased property. plant and equipment are recognised initially al {he lower
of the present value of the minimum lease paymenis or their fair value. A corresponding liability is established and each lease paymeni
apportioned between the reduction of the oulstanding liability and the finance expense. The finance expense is charged o the income statemenl
in each period during the lease lerm so as lo produce a conslant periodic rale of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Leased property,
plant and equipment are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the useful life of equivalent owned praperly, plant and equipmenl.

Operating leases

Payments made under operaling leases, where the lessors effeclively relain substanlially all the risks and benefils of awnership of the leased
property, plant and equipment are recognised in the income stalement on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incenlives received are
recognised as an integral part of ihe lotal lease expense over ihe lerm of the Iease. Properly. plant and equipment used by the group under
operating leases are nol recognised in the group's stalement of financial position.

Leasehold improvements

The cost of improvements {o leasehold property are capilalised and depreciated over the unexpired period of the lease or the eslimaled useful life
of the improvements, whichever is the shorier.

IMPAIRMENT
The carrying amounls of lhe group’s assels are reviewed al balance date {o delermine whelher there is any evidence of impairment.

Where assels are deemed lo be impaired, the impairment loss is the amount thal the carrying amount of an asset exceeds ils recoverable amount.
Impairment losses direclly reduce Lhe carrying amount of assels and are recognised in the income stalement.

Impairment of receivables

The carrying amounl of the group's receivables is compared lo Ihe recoverable amount which is amortised cosl. Amortised cosl is estimaled as
the presenl value of eslimated iuture cash {lows. Long term receivables are discounted to reflect the fime value of money. An impairmenl loss is
recognised if lhe carrying amount of a receivable or grouping of similar receivables exceeds its recoverable amount. Receivables wilh a shorl
duration are nol discounted.

For trade receivables which are not significanl on an individual basis, colleclive impairment is assessed on a portfolio basis based on numbers of
days overdue, and taking into account previous experience of doubtful or delayed calleclion of debts on portfolios with a simitar amount of days
overdue.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the group’s non-financial assels, olher than invenlories and defered lax assets, are reviewed al each balance dale Lo
determine whether lhere is any indicalion of impaimment. If any such indication exists then the asset's carrying amounl is compared lo ils
recoverable amounl to delermine the level of impairment if any. For goodwill, recoverable amount is determined at [eas| annually and compared
wilh the carrying value for impairmenl tesling purposes.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amounl of an assel or ils cash-generaling unil exceeds ils recoverable amount, A cash-generaling
unil is the smallest identifiable assel group thal generales cash flows that are largely independent from olher assels and groups. Impairment
losses are recognised in the income stalement. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocaled first lo reduce the
carrying amaounl of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generaling unils and Lhen to reduce the carrying amounl of the other assets in the unit on a
pro rata basis.

The recoverable amount of an assel ar cash-generaling unil is the greater of its value in use and iis fair value less costs io sell. In assessing lhe
value in use, the estimaled fulure cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-lax discount rale thal reflecls curren| market
assessmenis of the lime value of money and the risks specific lo the assef or cash-generating unit.

An impairment loss in respecl of goodwill is nof reversed. In respect of olher assels, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at
each balance dale for any indications lhal the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairmenl loss may be reversed if there has been a
change in lhe estimales used fo delermine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed (o lhe income stalement only lo the exleni thal
the assel’s carrying amounl does nol exceed the carrying amount that would have been delermined, net of depreciation and amoriisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

R)

$)

PROVISIONS

Provisions are liabilities which arise where the group considers, as a result of a pasl evenl, Lhat a construclive or legal cbligalion exists lo setile
items in |he foreseeable fulure. A provision is recognised where the likelihood of a resultant liability is considered more probable than nol and lhe
amount required 1o sefile Lhe liabilily can be reliably estimaled. Where the likelihood of a resultant liabilily is more than remote bul insufficient lo
warrant a provision, such evenls are disclosed as contingenl liabililies.

Provisions are eslimaled by discounting the expecled fulure cash flows at a pre-lax discounl rate ihal reflects currenl marke! assessmenls of the
lime value of money and the risks specilic to the liabilily. Where a provision is currently expecled to be ulilised within one year, or where the fulure
aclions of a third parly could cause lhe liability to be settled wilhin one year, (he provision is not discounted.

The amoriisalion or unwinding of any discounl applied in eslablishing the net present value of provisions is charged to finance cosls in [he income
stalement as the period of discounting diminishes.

Decommissloning of property, plant and equipment

A provision for decommissioning costs is recognised where on construclion of certain items of property, plant and equipmeni, lhe group becomes
commiited lo an unavoidable obligation to ultimalely dismantle and remove those items and lo reslore lhe site on which lhey are localed al he end
of the items’ productive life.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Borrowings
Borrowings are recorded inilially at fair value, nel of fransaclion cosls.

Subsequent 1o inilial recognilion, borrowings are measured at amortised cosl with any difference between the initial recognised amount and Lhe
redemption value being recognised in finance cosls in ihe income stalemenl over the period of the borrowing using Lhe efieclive interest rate
method.

Bomrowing costs

Borrowing cosls direclly alliibutable to qualilying properly, plant and equipmeni under construclion are capilalised as parl of the cosl of lhose
assels.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenls comprise cash on hand, cash in banks, short lerm deposils maluring within (hree months and investments in money
markel inslruments, net of bank overdrafls

Derivative financial instruments

The group enters into a variety of derivalive financial instrumenls to manage ils exposure to interesl rate and foreign exchange rale nsk, including
interes! rate swaps, cross cuency swaps and foreign exchange contracls. Derivalives are inilially recognised al fair value on the dale a derivalive
conlracl is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each balance dale. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in the
income statemenl immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrumenl, in which event, Ihe liming of the
recognilion in the income slalement depends on the nalure of Ihe designated hedge relationship. The group designales certain derivalives as
either hedges of the fair value of recognised assels or liabilities or firm commilments (fair value hedges), or hedges of highly probable forecast
transactions (cash flow hedges). Al the inceplion of the transaction the group documenls the relalionship between hedging instruments and
hedged ilems, as well as its risk managemenl objectives and slralegy for underiaking various hedge transactions. The group also documenis ils
assessment, bolh at hedge inception and on an ongaing basis, of whelher the derivatives that are used in hedging iransactions are highly effeclive
in offsetling changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged ilems.

Fair value hedge

Changes in Lhe fair value of derivalives (hat are designaled and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in Lhe income statement immediately,
logether wilh any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability lhat is aflributable 1o the hedged risk. The gain or loss relating 1o both
the effective and the ineffective portion of interest rate swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings is recognised in lhe income sialement within finance
cosls. Changes in the fair value of the underlying hedged fixed rate bormowings atiributable 1o interesl rale risk are also recognised in the income
statement wilhin finance costs.

Hedge accounling is discontinued when the hedge instrument expires or is sold, lerminaled, exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting. The fair value adjusiment lo the carrying amount of lhe hedged ilem arising from the hedged risk is amorlised through lhe income
statemenl from ihal dale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

S} FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

T)

Cash llow hedge

The effective porlion of changes in the fair value of derivalives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in olher
comprehensive income. The gain or loss refaling o the neffective portion, if any, is recognised immediately in he income statement wilhin finance
costs.

Amounts accumulaled in other comprehensive income are recycled in finance costs in the income slatement in {he periods when {he hedged ilem
is recognised in profil or loss. The gain or loss relaling to ihe effeclive podion of interest rate swaps hedging variable rale botrowings is recognised
in Ihe income statement wilhin finance costs, when the underlying lransaclion afiecls earnings.

However, when Lhe forecasl lransaction thal is hedged resulls in the recognition of a non-financial assel or a non-financial liability, the gains and
losses previously recognised in olher comprehensive income are {ransfered from other comprehensive income and included in Lhe inilial
measurement of the cosl of Lhe assel or liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging inslrumenl expires or is sold, terminaled, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting. Thereafter, any cumulalive gain or loss previously recognised in olher comprehensive income is only recognised in profit or loss when
the forecast lransaclion is ullimately recognised in profil or loss. When a forecasl Iransaction is no longer expecled 1o occur, the cumulalive gain
or loss lhal was previously recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised immedialely in lhe income slalerment.

Derivalives that do nol qualify for hedge accounling

Certain denvalive instruments do nol qualify for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instruments that do not qualify for
hedge accounling are recognised immedialely in the income staiement within finance cosls.

Embedded derivalives

Derivalives embedded in olher host conlracls are trealed as separale derivalives when their risks and characleristics are not closely related lo
those of hosl coniracls and Ihe hosl conlracts are not measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the income slalemenl.

Financial assets
Financial assets consist of loans and receivables.
Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans, and oiher receivables are recorded at fair value which is amortised cost less impairment. Fair value is estimaled as the
present value of fulure cash flows, discounted at the markel rate of inleres! al balance date. A provision for doubtiul debis is recognised fo allow
for the reduction in fair value attributable to expecied doubliut or delayed collection of receivables.

Financial instruments issued by the company
Debl and equily instrumenis

Debl and equily instruments are classified as eilher liabililies or as equily in accordance with lhe substance of lhe contraclual arrangemenl. If
there is no contraclual obligation to deliver cash or anolher financial assed, lhen the inslrument is classified as equily. All olher instruments are
classified as liabililies.

Transaclion costs on the issue of equily instruments

Transaction cosls arising on lhe issue of equily instruments are recognised direclly in equity as a reduction of Lhe proceeds of {he equily
instruments to which the coslts relale. Transaclion costs are lhe costs thal are incurred direclly in conneclion with the issue of lhose equity
inslruments and which would not have been incurred had lhose inslruments nol been issued.

Equity inslrumen!s repurchased and held as lreasury shares

Any equiy instruments issued by the company and subsequently repurchased are classified separalely as treasury shares and are disclosed as a
deduglion within equily. The carrying value includes the consideration paid fo repurchase the shares plus any related {ransaclion costs.

Interes| and dividends

Interesl paid and dividends paid are classified as expenses or as dislributions of profit consislent wilh the sialement of financial posilion
classificalion of the relaled debi or equily instruments.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

Financial guaranlees are accounled for in accordance wilh NZ IFRS 4, insurance Contracts, wherein a liability is recognised, if any, at {he present
value of expecled future payments for claims incurred.
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Statement of Accounting Policies
for the year ended 30 June 2010

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U) CASH FLOW STATEMENT
The following are the definilions of lhe terms used n the cash {low slalement:

Operaling aclivilies include the principal revenue-producing activities and all fransaclions and other evenis {hal are nol invesling or financing
aclivilies.

Invesling aclivilies are those activilies relating lo |he acquisilion, holding and disposal of properly. plant and equipment and olher invesimenis
not included in cash and cash equivalents.

Financing aclivilies are those aclivilies that resull in changes in lhe size and composilion of the capilal struclure, Dividends paid in relalion to the
capilal slruclure are included in financing activilies.

Cash and cash equivalents are cash on hand and in current accounls in banks, nel of bank overdrafls and highly liquid invesiments hal are
readily convertible to known amounls of cash which are subjec to an insignificant risk of change in value.

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS NOT YET ADOPTED

The following recenlly-published standards and interprelalions which are considered relevanl 1o the group bul not yel effeclive for the year ended
30 June 2010 have net been applied in preparing lhese consolidaled financial stalemenls.

NZ IFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement

The firs| phase of amendments to NZ [FRS 9 specifies how an eniity should classify and measure financial assets, including some hybrid coniracts.
All linancial assels are to be classified on the basis of the objeclives of the enlily's business madel for managing the financial assets. Under NZ IFRS 9
financial assets are inilially measured at fair value plus parlicular transaction costs and subsequenlly measured al amorlised cost or fair value. These
amendments resull in a simplified approach to classifying financial assets by removing the held-lo-malurity and available for sale financial asset
calegories which now exisl in NZ IAS 39. These amendments which become mandatory for the financial slalements for the year ended 30 June 2014
are nol expected to have any malerial impacl on eilher lhe separate financial slalements of Vector Limiled or the consolidated financial stalements,

NZ |AS 24, Related Party Disclosures (revised 2009)

This slandard has been revised to simplfy and clarify the definition of a related parly and lo provide a pariial exemption from the disclosure
requirements for government-relaled enlities. These amendments which become mandalory for the financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2012 are nol expecled lo have any material impacl on either lhe separate financial slalements of Vector Limited or the consolidaled financial
slatements

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial stalemenls were approved by the board of directors on 27 August 2010.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for {he year ended 30 June 2010

2.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Vector's internal reporiing 1o Lhe Group CEO and board is focused on the following businesses which are [herefore the group's operaling
segments reported below in accordance with NZ IFRS 8:

Electricity
Ownership and managemenl of eleclricily distnbution networks.

Gas Transportation
Ownership and management of gas transmission and distribution networks.

Gas Wholesale
Nalural gas (acquisilion, processing and retailing), LPG (distribulion, slorage and retailing) and cogeneralion.

Technelogy
Telecommunications networks, eleciricily and gas melering.

Corporale aclivilies comprising shared services and invesmenls eam revenues lhal are only incidenlal to the operations of the group and do
not meel the definition of an operaling segment. The resuls attribulable lo these activities are presenied under the reconcilialions of segmenl
informalion to Lhe group’s consolidated financial slalements on page 27.

The segmenls reported in these financial slalemenls are the same as those reporled in Vector's Annual Repori for Lhe year ended 30 June
2009.

Intersegmenl transaclions included in the operating revenues and expendilures for each segrmenl are on an arms’ lenglh basis
All segment informalion presented is prepared in accordance with Veclor's accounling policies. Monthly internal reporting to Lhe Group CEQ
and the board of directors is also prepared on this basis. Segment profit reported to the Group CEC and the board of directors is profil before

income lax. All financing cosls and finance income are incorporaled wilhin Corporate activities and are not atlocaled (o the segments.

The group engages with one major cuslomer which contribuies individually greater than ten percenl of ils {olal revenue, The customer
contributed $156.4 million (2009: $142.2 million) which is reported in |he Eleclricity and Gas Transportation segments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for lhe year ended 30 June 2010

3. TOTAL INCOME

GROUP PARENT
2010 2009 2010 2009
NOTE $000 £000 $000 $000
Operating revenue
Trading revenue;
Energy sales 398,230 408,852 . -
Provision of utlity services 757,824 742,242 578,951 569,976
Customer conlributions 29,773 22853 25,083 19,310
Management fees from related parties 30 . " 41,548 43304
1,185,827 1,173.947 645,582 532,680
Other income
Gain on disposal of property, ptanl and equipment and software 1,613 211 802 184
Dividends 30 . . 200
1,613 211 1,002 184
Total 1,187,440 1,174,158 646,584 532,864
4, OPERATING EXPENDITURE
ot GROUP . - PARENT -
NOTE $000 $000 £000 $000
Cperaling expendilure includes.
Rental and operating lease cosls 4,104 4240 2,639 3.3
Olher adminisiration expenses 14,770 17,281 11,255 13,404
Loss on disposal of property, planl and equipment and software 6,289 12,212 312 8,895
Bad debis writlen-off 2,737 258 1,489 212
(Decrease)/increase in provision for doubtful debls (1,039) 448 857 1,287
Donations 4 30 4 30
Director's fees Kl 987 900 900 818
Coninbutions 1o KiwiSaver 598 478 529 428
Release of provision lor contractual indemnity 24 - (8.877) c
Audilor's remuneralion:
Audit fees paid to audilors - KPMG 107 816 561 707
Fees paid for other assurance services provided - KPMG 592 422 592 422

Fees for ofher assurance services paid to the auditor primarily relate to the special purpose audils of regulatory disclosures such as lhe electricity
{hreshold compliance stalemens.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2010

5. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

GROUP PARENT
2010 2009 22010 2009
Note 5000 5000 $000 $000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Dislribution systems 95,541 94,688 79,985 70,530
Distribution buildings 1,299 1,258 1,299 1,258
Eleclricily and gas melers 21,025 16,950 - =
Cogeneralion planl 1,915 1,624 -
Computer and telecommunicalions equipment 11,489 7,575 2,344 2,230
Molor vehicles and mobile equipmentl 969 1,181 112 120
Other planl and equipmenl 7.064 3,538 249 246
Buildings 75 219 20 20
Leasehold improvements 2,363 1643 2,235 1597
A 740 128,676 86,244 76,001
Amortisation of intangible assets
Contraciual agreemenls 139 - . .
Software 14,440 16,686 9,846 10,901
19 14,579 16,686 9,846 10,901
Total 156,319 145,362 96,090 86,902
B. NET FINANCE COSTS
GROUP PARENT
2010 2009 2010 2009
000 3000 5000 $000
Finance cosls
Inleres! expense 177,599 207,618 177,043 206,562
Loss on inefieclive porion of cash flow hedges . 13 . 13
Loss/{profil) on lair value movemnent on hedging mstruments 42,976 (88,949) 42976 (B8,949)
(Profil)floss on fair value movemenl on hedged items {43,070) 89,286 (43,070) £9,286
Loss on financial inslruments at fair value through profit or loss 1.004 1004
Capilalised inleresl (6,035) {6.025) {3,440) {3.635)
Other nel finance expenses/gains 2,959 2737 2970 2779
174,429 205,684 176,479 207,060
Finance income
Inleresl income (7,456) {16,144} {9,310) (17,090}
(7,456) {16.144) {9,310} {17.090)
Net finance costs 166,973 189.540 167,169 189,970

Interesl is capitalised on property, planl and equipment while under construction at an average rate of 7.1% per annum (2009 8.1%).

The loss on financial inslruments al fair value ihrough profit or loss moslly relates 1o interesl rate caps. These were not designaled as a hedg!ng

inslrument in any hedge relalionship.

¥
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2010

7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

- GROUP o0s oo PARENT -
$000 $000 $000 $000

Current income tax
Current income {ax expense 68,059 60,622 22,435 13,518
Relating Lo fosses transferred from subsidiaries = {847)
Prior period adjustments recognised in the current period 162 3,934 228 {422
Deferred income tax
Relating to property, plant and equipment 13,497 3.584 3,915 5,682
Relaling 1o olher items in the statement of financial position (9,617) 3,218 433 (116)
Relaling to future change in buildings deprecialion rules 9,232 - 7,939 -
Relating to future reduction in tax rale (31,271) - {27,365)
Prior period adjustments recognised in the current period (770} {3.148) {1,325) 297
Income tax expense 49,292 68,210 5413 18,959
Reconciliation of income tax expense
Profil before income tax 243,410 241,965 98,362 74,355
Tax at current rate of 30% 74,523 72,5890 29,509 22,307
Future reduction in tax rale impacting deferred tax (31,2711) = {27,365) -
Future change in buildings deprecialion rules impaciing deferred tax 9,232 - 7,939 .
Non-taxable ilems:

Customer cantributions {7,865) (6.856) {6,504) {5.793)

Impairmenl of investment in associate 1,241 1,956 1,244 1,856

Remeasurement of nan-controlling interest in Advanced

Metering Services Limiled ) ’ R

Losses iransferred from subsidiaries = (847) -

Other 3432 520 1,003 489
Income tax expense 49,292 68,210 5,413 18,959

In May 2010 {he Government announced a reduction in the company tax rale to 28% and Ihe removal of deprecialion deductions for buildings. Both of
these changes are effeclive from lhe 2011/2012 income year. In accordance wilh NZ IAS 12 Veclor has restated its deferred iax liabilily to refleci lhese
changes resulling in a reduclion in income tax expense for lhe penod of $22.0 million. The Governmen also announced that customer conlributions
would be taxable for those conlribulions received on or after 21 May 2010. This had the impac! of increasing group {ax expense by $1.1 million for the

2010 period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 3¢ June 2010

8. INCOME TAX

GROUP PARENT
2010 2009 2010 2008
$000 3000 $000 $000

Current tax asset
Prepaid tax 35,193 43,606 34,838 43,606
Total 35,193 43,606 34,838 43,606
Non-current tax asset
Research and devalopmenl tax credil 448 =
Total 448 - 0 =
Current tax liabillty
Income {ax payable 1,428 2,370 - -
Total 1,428 2,370
Imputation balances
Balance al beginning of the pericd {24.944) (27.726) o -
Income tax paymenls during the period 59,828 59,444 .
Impulation credits altaching lo dividends paid (57,574) {56,662) - =
Balance at end of the period (23,080} {24,944)
The impulalion credils are available to sharehclders of lhe parent:

Through direct sharehclding in the parent {25,264) (26,519) . .

Through indireci shareholding in subsidiary 2,174 1,575 . -
Total (23,090) {24,944} .

Vector Limiled is a member of the Vector group consolidated impulalion credit account. Therefore its balance is reported within the group imputation
credil accouni.

9. DEFERRED TAX ASSET

GROUP PARENT

2019 2008 2010 2009

$000 $000 $000 $000
Balance al beginning of the period 1,137 1,137 o .
Transfer to current tax on utilisalion of {ax losses {8 -
Acquisition of subsidiary 1,764 = - _
Impact of future reduction in tax rale {193) - - .
Balance at end of the period 2,700 1137 .

The deferred lax assels acquired relate fo the future income lax benefits of accumulaled iax losses atiributable lo Advanced Melering Services Limiled
and are only available lo be ulilised to oifsel fulure taxable profits of Ihat subsidiary company. All other deferred {ax assets relaie lo the future income
ax benefils of accumulated lax losses which are only available to Veclor Communicalions and Veclor Slream, also subsidiaries of the parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2010

10.  DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

GROUP FROPERTY.  PROVISIONS
2010 PLANT AND AND HEDGE
EQUIPMENT ACCRUALS ~ TAXLOSSES  RESERVE OTHER TOTAL
5000 5000 $000 5000 $000 $000
Balance al beginning of the period 539,080 {1,403) (1,063} (33,433) 2,614 505,795
Transfer {o current tax on ultlisation of {ax losses : o 1,063 - - 1,063
Amounis recognised in the income statement:
Relating lo the current period 13,497 (6,607) {2,314) - {696) 3,880
Prior peniod adjusiments recognised in the current period (1,104 338 - {4 {770)
Relalin_g llo fulure change in buildings 9,232 i} : . i 9232
depreciation rnules '
Relaling to future reduclion in lax rale (31,847) 511 . . (128)  (31,464)
Amounts recognised direclly in other comprehensive . - (12,801) . (12,80
income ' :
Amounis recpgnised directly in Aolh(_er comprehensive ; 3,082 3,082
income relating to fulure reduction in lax rale
Balance at end of the period 528,858 {r.161) (2314} (43,152 1,786 478,017
Deferred tax assets e {7,161) (2314  (43,152) - (52,627)
Deferred lax liabilities 528,856 S 1,786 530,644
Net deferred tax liability 526,858 {7.181) 2314)  (43,152) 1,786 478,017
PROPERTY.  PROVISIONS
%F:)SUP PLANT AND AND HEDGE
EQUIPMENT ACCRUALS  TAXLOSSES  RESERVE OTHER TOTAL
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Balance al beginning of lhe period 538,320 (5.520) {266) S 2186 534,720
Transfer 1o current {ax on ufilisation of {ax losses = 2686 588 854
Amounls recognised in the income statement:
Relating la the cument period 3,584 4,441 {1.063) (160) 6,802
Prior period adjusiments recognised in the current period (2.824) (324) = - - (3148)
Amounls recognised direclly in olher comprehensive ; N - (33433 . (33433
income ’ J
Balance at end of the period 539,080 {1,403) (1.063)  (33.433) 2614 505,795
Deferred lax assets - (1.403) {1.063}  (33.433) - {35.899)
Deferred fax liabilities 539,080 - - - 2614 541694
Net deferred tax liability 539,080 (1,403) (1.063)  (33,433) 2614 505795
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10.  DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY {continued)
PROPERTY.  PROVISICS

;l;%ENT EPOL&P;L?Iﬁ ACCRUAA'\IE[S) RE];EIEE%E OTHER TOTAL
$000 $000 $000 5000 $000
Balance al beginning of the period 409,857 (3.722)  (33,433) 1,314 374,016
Amounts recognised in {he income stalement:
Relating to the curreni peried 3,915 466 5 (33) 4,348
Prior period adjustmenls recognised in Lhe curreni period (876) {456) - 7 (1,325)
Relaling lo fulure change in buildings depreciation rules 7,939 - 5 . 7,939
Relaling to fulure reduclion in lax rale (27,526) 248 - (87)  (27,365)
Amounts recognised direclly in olher comprehensive income - - {12,801} - (12,801)
Amounls recognised direclly in other comprehensive income
relating lo fulure reduction in ax rale i i - . 3,082
Balance at end of ihe period 393,309 (3,464}  (43,152) 1,201 347,894
Deferred lax assefs - (3,464) (43,152) - (46,616)
Deferred tax liabililies 393,309 - - 1,201 394,510
Net deferred tax liability 393,309 {3,464} (43,152) 1,201 347,894

PARENT PROPERTY,  PROVISIONS

2009 EF::LG{;L@];? ACCRu':Eg RE';EEQEE OTHER TOTAL
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Balance at beginning of the period 404,511 (4,320) = 1,395 401,586
Amounts recognised in the income statement:
Relaling o the current periad 5,682 (35) - {81) 5,566
Prior period adjusiments recognised in the currenl period {336) 633 = 5 2497
Amounls recognised direcily in olber comprehensive ) . (33.433) . (3343
income
Balance al end of the period 409,857 (3.722) {33,433) 1,314 374,018
Deferred tax assels = (3.722) (33.433) - {37,185)
Deferred ax liabiliies 409,857 - - 1314 411,171
Net deferred tax liability 409,857 {(3,722) (33.433) 1,314 374,018

There are no unrecognised deferred {ax assets or liabilities for the parent or the group.

Tax losses which are available io be ulilised by the group are disclosed as deferred tax assels and are offset agains| deferred {ax liabillties.

11.  TRANSACTIONS WITH OWNERS

Veclor Limited's final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2009 of 7.25 cents per share was paid on 15 September 2009 wilh a supplementary
dividend of $0.4 million (equaling to 1.28 cenls per non-resident share). The interim dividend for the current year of 6.5 cenls per share was paid on
14 Apiil 2010 wilh a supplementary dividend of $0.3 million (equating to 1.15 cents per non-resident share). Both dividends gave rise lo foreign
investor lax credits equal lo lhe amount of supplemenlary dividend paid.

The lotal number of authorised and 1ssued shares is 1,000,000,000 (2009: 1,000,000,000). Al ordinary issued shares are fully paid, have no par value
and carry equal voling rights and equal nighls o a surplus on winding up of the parenl.

The board authorised an on-markel buy back of Vector Limited's shares in August 2008 with purchases occurring belween 1 September 2008 and 27
Augus! 2009. At balance date 4,244,923 shares had been purchased and are held as ireasury shares.

33



Notes to the Financial Statements
for Lhe year ended 30 June 2010

12.  FINANCIAL RATIOS

Eamings per share

The calculalion of basic earnings per share for Ihe year ended 30 June 2010 1s based on ihe nel profil attributable lo ordinary shareholders of lhe
parent of $193.5 millien {(2009: $370 5 million of which $205.6 million relates to discontinued operalions) and a weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year ended 30 June 2010 of 995,755,077 (2009: 997,221,099). Diluled eamnings per share is calculaled on the same
basis as basic eamings per share. The group currenlly has no financial instruments which have potential dilutionary effects on eamings per share.
Total and net tangible assets per share

The calculations of the lolal and nel langible assets per share for Lhe year ended 30 June 2010 are based on the carrying amounts of the total assels of

$5,550.9 million (2009: $5,538.6 million) and net assels of $2,084.2 million (2009: $2.058.9 million) less tolal intangible assels of $1,612.2 million
{2008: $1,801.1 million) and 995,755,077 ardinary shares outsfanding as al 30 June 2010 (2009: 995,755,077).

13.  RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

GROUP PARENT

010 2009 2010 2009
NOTE $000 $000 $000 $000
Current
Trade receivables 143,367 170,229 80,104 86.383
Provision for doubtful debls {4,857) (5,896) (3,833) (2,976)
138,510 164,333 76,271 83407
Prepaymenls 6,824 6.463 4,262 3,940
Interes( receivable 18,393 19797 18,393 19,797
Other receivables 40 40 40 40
Total 163,767 190,633 98,966 107,184
Non-current
Loan lo associate 30 - 4,450 . 4450
Other receivables 1,426 1,440 1,428 1,440
Total 1,428 5,890 1,428 5,890
14, INVENTORIES
- GROUP oo - PARENT e
$000 $000 $000 $000
Nalural gas and by-products 1,667 1,552 - -
Trading stock 2,504 598 . =
Consumable spares 3 58 33 58
Total 4,204 2,208 33 58




Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 20110

15.  DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Disposal of subsidiaries

On 24 July 2008, Veclor disposed of 100% of shares in ils subsidiaries Vector Wellington Eleclricity Nelworks Limiled and Veclor Wellinglon Eleclricily

Management Limited lo Cheung Kong Infraslructure Holdings Limiled. Details of lhe disposal are as follows:

GROUP PARENT
2009 2010 2003
$000 $000 $000
Cash flows from discontinued operations
Nel cash flows from operaling aclivities 4 246
Nel cash flows used in investing activilies {1.849)
el cash flows from financing activilies 9,653
Net cash inflow 12,050
GROUP
2009
$000
Book value of net assets sold:
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 12,050
Receivables and prepaymenis 14,027
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 507,669
Inlangible assets 114,743
Current llabilities
Payables and accruals {14.281)
Prowisions (104
Income 1ax {1.441)
Non-current liabilities
Deferred {ax liability (57,423)
Net assets disposed 575,240
Costs of disposal 8,158
Gain on disposal of discontinued operalions 202,902
Total consideration received or accrued 786,300
Accrual for consideralion receivable pending final completion {1,300}
Consideralion received in cash and cash equivalents 785,000
The consideralion receivable at 30 June 2009 was subsequently received during ihe year ended 30 June 2010
GROUP
2009
$000
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalenls 785,000
Less: cash and cash eguivalent balances disposed (12,050}
Net cash and cash equivalents on disposal 772,950
(\.&
N
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16.  INVESTMENTS
Investmenis in group companies comprise:

PRINCIPAL ACTMITY PERCENTAGE HELD

2010 2009

Subsidiaries
NGC Holdings Limited Invesiment 100% 100%
- Veclor Managemenl Services Limiled Managemeni services 100% 100%
- Vector Gas Limited Nalural gas sales, processing and {ransporialion 100% 100%
- Veclor Gas Conlracts Limiled Natural gas sales 100% 100%
- Vector Gas Invesiments Limited Invesimenl| 100% 100%
- Veclor Kapuni Limiled Invesiment 100% 100%
- Liquigas Limiled LPG tolling sales 60% B0%
- On Gas Limited LPG sales and distribution 100% 100%
- NGC Melering Limiled Electricity and gas metenng 100% 100%
- Veclor Melering Dala Services Limited Invesiment and melering dala services 100% 100%
- Elecl Data Services {Australia) Ply Limiled Energy metering data management 100% 100%
Veclor Communicalions Limited Telecommunications 100% 100%
Vector Siream Limited Investmentl 100% 100%
- Stream |nformation Limited Agenl for parlnership 70% 70%
- Slream Informalion Parinership Metering services 10% 70%
Advanced Melering Services Limited Melering services 100% 50%
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16. INVESTMENTS (contlnued)

PRINCIPAL ACTRITY PERCENTAGE HELD
2010 2009
Non-trading subsidiaries
Auckland Generation Limiled Holding company 100% 100%
- MEL Network Limited Holding company 100% 100%
- Mercury Geotherm Limiled (in receivership) Invesiment 100% 100%
- Poihipi Land Limiled {in receivership) Invesiment 100% 100%
UniledNetworks Limited Dormani 100% 100%
Salamanca Holdings Limiled Investmenl 75% 75%
Broadband Services Limiied Dormant 100% 100%
UniledNetworks Employee Share Schemes Trustee Limited Trustee company 100% 100%
NGC Limiled Dormanl 100% 100%
Associates
Tree Scape Limiled Vegelalion managemeni 50% 50%
- Treescape Australagia Piy Limiled Vegelalion managemenl 50% 50%
Energy Intellect Limited Melering services 25% 25%
NZ Windfarms Limiled Power generation 22% 20%
Jeint venture interests
Kapuni Energy Joinl Veniure Cogeneration 50% 50%

During April 2010, the group subscribed lo a rights issue by NZ Windfarms Limited and also acquired shares which were not laken up in Lhe rights issue
in its capacity as undenwriler of the issue. In total the group acquired 47,980,362 additional shares for $7.2 million al 15 cenls per share increasing the

group’s shareholding from 19.99% to 22 11%.

Previously, in December 2009, an impairment loss of §4.1 million was recognised in respect of the group’s investment in NZ Windfarms Limiled.

All entiies have a balance date of 30 June, apart from Tree Scape Limited, Treescape Auslralasia Ply Limiled, Salamanca Holdings Limited, Mercury

Geotherm Limited (in receivership) and Poihipi Land Limited {in receivership) which all have a balance date of 31 March.

All enlilies are incorporated in New Zealand except Elect Data Services (Australia) Ply Limited and Treescape Auslralasia Ply Limited which are

incorporaled in Ausiralia.
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17.  INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

GROUP PARENT

2010 2009 2010 2009

$000 $000 $000 $000
Carrying amount of associates
Balance at beginning of lhe period 28,193 33.504 17,511 24,030
Remeasuremenl and derecognition of non-controlling inleresl in
Advanced Melering Services Limited ol . (4,104) )
Impairment of invesiment in NZ Windfarms Limited {4,136) (6,519} (4,136) {6519)
Acquisition of further inveslment in NZ Windfarms Limiled 7,103 - 7,103
Share of nef (loss)/profil of associates (2,305) 1,208 . -
Dividend received irom associate {200) 5 -
Balance at end of the period 25,525 28,193 16,374 17511
Equity accounted earnings of associates
(Loss)/profit before income tax (2,624) 1,757 = 5
Income lax expense 519 (549} 5
Share of net {loss)iprofit of associates {2,305} 1,208 2 o
Total recognised revenues and expenses (2,305) 1,208 : -

The amount of goodwill included in the carrying amount of investments in associales is $15.8 million (2009: $15.8 million).

On 29 January 2010, the group purchased an addilional 50% shareholding in Advanced Melering Services Limited {AMS) and now awns a 100%
shareholding of the company. The non-conlrolling equity inferest in AMS has therefore been derecognised and reclassified in lhe parent as an

investment in a subsidiary.

As al 31 December 2009, an impairmenl loss of $4 1 million {2009: $6.5 million) was recognised in respecl of the group's inveslment in ils associate
company, NZ Windfarms Limited. The share price of NZ Windfarms Limited declined between 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2009 from $0.70
per share lo $0.42 per share. The recoverable amount delermined al 31 December 2009 was eslimated based on the invesiment's fair value less cosls

to sell by reference to this aclive market price on the New Zealand Slock Exchange.

In Apnl 2010. the group acquired 47.980,362 addilional shares issued by NZ Windfarms Limiled at $0.15 per share pursuan {0 its B shares for 3 shares

held rights issue.

The share price at 30 June 2010 of $0.21 per share supporis the current carrying value of the group’s inveslment in NZ Windfarms Limited at thal dale.

GROUP PARENT

2010 2009 010 2009

$000 $000 $000 $000
Summarised financial information of associates (100%):
Tolal assels 142,11 144,829 =
Total liabililies 21,880 41,164 - -
Total revenue 50,769 56,358 .
Total nei (loss)y/profit afier lax (5,019) 3,263 5 .
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18.  INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES
Kapuni Energy Joint Venlure

The group has a 50% inlerest in an unincorporated joint venture thal operates a cogeneration plant situaled at lhe Kapuni gas lreaimeni plant
producing eleclricily and sleam for lhe gas trealmen plant and ofher customers. The joint venlure is in the nature of joinily controlled assels. The joint
venture partners jointly conlrol the assets held by the joinl venture and each bears an agreed share of lhe expenses incurred. Each joint venlure
pariner recognises ils share of lhe assets, liabililies, revenues and expenses in ils separale financial slatements. On consolidation, these amouns are
also carried lhrough inlo (he financial stalemenls of the group.

19.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

CONTRACTUAL

GROUP GOODWILL ~ COMMITMENTS ~ EASEMENTS SOFTWARE TOTAL
2010 NOTE $000 $000 $000 $000 £000
Cost

Balance al beginning of lhe period 1,553,391 - 12,491 115,963 1,681,845
Acquisilion of subsidiary - 2147 - 8,803 10,950
Addilions 944 - - 3 947
Transfers from property, plant and equipment - - 409 15,182 15,591
Balance al end of Lhe period 1,554,335 2,147 12,900 139,951 1,709,333
Accumulated amortisation

Balance at beginning of the period - S - (80,750) {80,750)
Amorlisation for the period 5 - {139) - {14,440} {14,579)
Transfers from property, plant and equipment - - - (1,776) {1,776}
Balance al end of the period - {139) - (96,966) {97,105)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2010 1,554,335 2,008 12,900 42,985 1,612,228
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19.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued}

GROUP GOODWILL EASEMENTS SOFTWARE TOTAL
2009 NOTE 5000 5000 $000 5000
Cost

Balance al beginning of the period 1,553,391 11,967 101,744 1,667,089
Additions 2 = 11,724 11,724
Disposals 2 (2,804) {2,804)
Transfers irom property, plani and equipment - 524 5,302 5,826
Balance al end of {he period 1,553,391 12,491 115,963 1,681,845
Accumulated amortisation

Balance at beginning of the period - - (61,566} {61,566)
Amorlisation for the period 5 - - (16.,686) {16.686)
Disposals - 2,804 2,804
Transfers {rom properly, plant and equipment - (5,302) (5.302)
Balance at end of the period = - (80,750) (80.750)
Carrylng amount at 3¢ June 2009 1,563,391 12,49 35,213 1.601,095
PARENT GOODWILL EASEMENTS SOFTWARE TOTAL
2010 NGTE $000 5000 $000 5000
Cost

Balance al beginning of lhe period 515,110 12,489 91,437 619,036
Transfers from property, planl and equipment - 165 6,613 6,778
Balance al end of lhe period 515,110 12,654 98,050 625,814
Accumulated amortisation

Balance al beginning of lhe period - {61,198} (61,198}
Amortisation {or Lhe period 5 0 - (9,846) (9,846)
Balance at end of Ihe period - - (71,044) (71,044)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2010 515,110 12,654 27,006 554,770
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19.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

PARENT GOQDWILL EASEMENTS SOFTWARE TOTAL
2000 NQTE 5000 $000 $000 $000
Cost

Balance al beginning of ihe period 515,110 11,967 83,619 610,696
Additions 2 - 10,622 10,622
Disposals S - (2,804) (2,804}
Translers from property, plant and equipment - 522 - 522
Balance at end of ihe period 515,110 12,489 91,437 619,036

Accumulated amortisation

Balance al beginning of the period - - {53,101) {53,101)

Amoriisalion for the period 5 - - {10,991) (10,901}

Disposals 2 - 2,804 2,804

Balance at end of lhe period - - (61,198) (61,198)

Carrying amount at 30 June 2009 515,110 12,489 30,239 557,838
Amortisation charge

Software inlangibles are amorlised on a straighl line basis over their useful life.

Allocation of goodwilll to cash-generating units

Goodwill is allocated to operaling segments, being the lowesl leve! at which the goodwill is monitored lor intemal management purposes. The
aggregate carrying amounls of goodwill allocaled to each segment are $852.2 million for Eleclricity, $468.1 million for Gas Transpodalion, $219.2
milllion for Gas Wholesale, and $14.8 million for Technology (2009: $852.2 million, $468.1 million, $218.3 million, $14.8 million respeclively).

Impairment testing

The recoverable amounts atiribulable lo each segment are ¢alculaled on the basis of value-in-use using discounted cash flow models. Fulure cash
flows are projected out len years, based on actual resulls and board-approved business plans. Key assumplions include the level of future EBITDA and
levels of mainlenance expenditure for each segment. Managemenl belleves thal the ten year lorecast period Is justified due lo the long-lerm nature of
ihe group's capilal investment in ifs electricity, gas and technology businesses. Terminal growih rales in a range of 0.0% to 3.5% are applied. Pre-lax
discount rales between 8.9% and 18.7% are ulilised. The specific rales applied vary for the specific segment being valued. Projecled cash flows for
regulaled businesses are sensilive Lo assumplions made on unceriain fulure regulatory oulcomes. Estimaled future regulaled network revenues and
the related supporiable levels of capilal expendilure are based on current expectations of the outcome of uncertain price path resets. Two key drivers of
ihe outcome of price palh resets are the regulalory weighled average cosl of capital ("WACC") and changes in lhe valuation of the regulatory asset
base ("RAB"). Far example increasing or decreasing our assumption as lo the regulatory WACC by 0.1% would increase or decrease the valuation of
the electricily segmenl by $68 million and the valuation of the gas lransporiation segmenl by $16 million. The government's ullra fast broadband
iniliative is laken in lo account in delermining Lhe value of the lechnology segment.

The recoverable amount of each segment to which goodwill is allocaled exceeds the net assels plus goodwill allocated. Therefore the group has
delermined that no impairment to goodwill has occurred during Lhe period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for ihe year ended 30 June 2010

20.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT {continued)

Interest and other infernal cosls are capitalised to property, plant and equipment while under construction. Inleres! is capitalised against properly, plant and
equipment al an average rale of 7.1% per annum (2009: 8.1% per annum). Ouring the year $17.7 miilion {2009: $17.9 million) of inferes! and olher internal
cosls were capitalised. Property. plant and equipment subject {o finance lease amangements are included in electricity and gas melers at a nel baok value of
$3.7 miliion and in molor vehicles and mobile equipmenl al a net book value of $1.7 million (2009: $5.2 million and $2.4 million respeciively).

Property, planl and equipment includes §1.7 million {2009: $2 4 million) of motor vehicles and mobile equipment for which ownership passes lo the lessor in
the event of defaull on the finance lease arrangemen.

21,  PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

2010 eroe 2009 2010 PARENT 2009

NOTE $000 5000 $000 5000
Current
Trade payables and oiher credilors 131,870 122,806 77,715 68,943
Deferred income 2,886 3,161 5 -
Finance leases 26 1,836 2,356 256 125
Deferred consideralion payable 2,546 1,026 1,500 .
Inferes! payable 49,993 50,538 49,993 50,538
Total 189,131 179,887 129,464 119,606
Non-current
Deferred income 22,126 20,422 0 R
Deferred considerafion payable 1,655 2,393 . .
Finance leases 26 1,448 3,695 116 352
Olher non-current payables 592 627 592 591
Total 25,821 27137 708 943

The deferred consideralion payable is in respect of Energy Intellect Limited, which is an associate company of the group and Advanced Metering Services
Limited, which is a subsidiary of ihe group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2010

22.  PROVISIONS

GROUP PARENT
2010 2009 2010 2009
NOTE $000 $000 $000 $000
Current
Provision for employee entillements 23 5481 5,825 5,048 5,439
Other provisions 24 11,344 11,559 .
Total 16,825 17,384 5,048 5,439
Non-current
Decommissioning provision 25 3,000 1,000 - =
Total 3,000 1,000 5 -
23.  PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE ENTITLEMENTS
GROUP PARENT
00 2009 2010 2009
$000 $000 $000 $000
Balance at beginning of the period 5,825 5,545 5,439 5,262
Acquisition of subsidiary 382 = 5 .
Addilicns/ulilised) (726) 280 {391} 177
Balance at end of the peried 5,481 5,825 5,048 5439
24.  OTHER PROVISIONS
GROUP PARENT
2010 2009 2010 209
5000 $000 $000 $000
Balance al beginning of ihe period 11,559 24,915 = -
Addilions 770 2,665
Utllised {4,058) . .
Reversed o the income slatemeni {985) (11.963) @
11,344 11,559 o -

Balance at end of the period

These provisions may be required to be ufilised wilhin one year or a longer period dependent on ongoing negolialions wilh Lhe third parties involved.
There are currently no foreseeable uncertainties which would be reasonably expected lo lead 1o malerial changes in the amounls provided.

The group's provision for a contractual indemnity amounting to $8.9 million was reversed to the income stalemenl during the year ended 30 June

2009.
25, DECOMMISSIONING PROVISION
GROUP PARENT
2010 2009 2010 2008
$000 $000 $000 $000
Balance al beginning of the period 1,000 - - -
Additions 2,000 1,000 e -
Balance at end of the period 3,000 1,000 - .

The decommissioning provision is in respecl of fulure expected cosls for dismantling the group’s gas reatment and cogeneralion planis silualed at

Kapuni, Taranaki.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2010

26. COMMITMENTS

{a) Capital commitments for the acquisition and construction of property, plant and equipment and software intangibles
Capilal expendiure contracted for at balance date bul nol yet incurred is as follows:

GROUP PARENT
2010 2009 2010 2006
$000 3000 $000 $000
Eslimaled capilal expendilure contracled for 117,489 133.091 25 720 96,238

al balance dale but not provided

(b) Operating [ease commitments

The majority of the operating lease commitments relate io premises leases. These, in the main, give lhe group the right 1o renew the lease al the end
of lhe current lease term.

The {ulure aggregale minimum lease paymenis under non-cancellable operaling leases are as follows:

GROUP PARENT
2010 2009 2010 2009
$000 $000 $000 $000
Within one year 3,412 4,438 2,315 2,540
One to five years 2,830 5,322 892 2312
Beyond five years 1,004 621 108 120
Total 7,346 10,379 3,415 4,972

(c) Finance lease commitments

Finance leases relate 1o electricity meters and motor vehicles wilh varying lease terms The {ollowing finance lease commitments are recorded in the
financial slalements:

GROUP PARENT
2010 2009 2010 2009
$000 $000 5006 $000
Minimum lease payments for finance lease liabilities
Within one year 2,056 2,794 278 168
One lo five years 1,576 4,009 121 380
Total 3,632 6,803 399 548
Less: fulure finance costs (348) (752) {21} {m)
Present value of minimum lease payments 3,284 6,051 32 477
GRCUP PARENT
2010 2009 2010 200¢
NOTE 3000 $000 $000 $000
Present value of finance lease liabilities
Wilhin one year 21 1,836 2,356 256 125
One to five years 21 1,448 3695 116 352
Present value of minimum lease payments 3,284 6.051 372 477
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for lhe year ended 30 June 2040

27, BORROWINGS (continued)
All borrowings are unsecured and are subjecl to negalive pledge arrangements.
interest rates for all bank loans are floating based on the bank bill rate pius a margin. Bank loans are arranged through various facilily agreements.

Medium lerm notes — floaling rate AUD 204 million mature April 2011. The interest on AUD medium lerm noles is paid quarterly, based on BESW plus
a margin.

Capilal bonds are unsecured, subordinaled bonds wilh the next election dale set as 15 June 2012. The inlerest rale is currenily fixed al 8.00% per
annum and is paid semi-annually.

Senior bonds - fixed rate $150 million are due to mature in October 2014. The fixed interest rale is 7.8% per annum patd semi-annually.

Senior notes of USD 15 million, USD 85 million and USD 195 million, with onginal maturity periods of 8, 12 and 15 years respectively were placed
privalely with US investors in September 2004 at a coniract exchange rale of USD 0.6574 for every NZD. Inlerest is paid semi-annually.

The fleating rate noles tolalting $1.2 billion were issued in {hree iranches in October 2005 {8250 million 10 year, $400 million 12 year, and $350 millicn
15 year) and in one tranche in Apnl 2007 ($200 million 10 year). The $1.2 billion floating rale noles are credit wrapped by MBIA Insurance Corporaion
(10 year and 15 year lranches issued in Oclober 2005) and Ambac Assurance Corporation (12 year franche issued in Oclober 2005 and 10 year
tranche issued in April 2007). Inlerest is paid quarterly based on BKBM plus a margin.

In July 2009, Ihe group repurchased $40 million of its floating rale nales from the $200 million 10 year [ranche al a discount of $6.6 million. This
discount is included as a gain within finance cosis disclosed in the income slatement. The floating rate noles repurchased were subsequenlly cancelied
in August 2009.

GBP 115 million fixed rale noles due to mature in January 2019 were placed al a conlract exchange rale of GBP 0.4026 for every NZD. The {ixed
interest rale is 7.625% per annum. Interest is paid annually.

All borrowings are measured at amorlised cost adjusled for fair value movemenls in respect of the hedged risk on borrowings designated in fair value

hedge refationships and are classiied between current and non-current dependent on contraclual obligations. Borrowings are subject o various lending
covenants These have all been mel for he years ended 30 June 2010 and 30 June 2009.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for lhe year ended 30 June 2010

28.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The group has a comprehensive treasury policy approved by the board of direclors to manage the risks of financial instruments. The policy oullines the
objeclives and approach thal the group applies in its lreasury managemenl processes. The policy covers, among other things, management of credil
risk, inleres! rale risk, funding risk, liquidily risk, currency risk and operalional risk. Non-derivative financial assels are categorised as ‘loans and
inslruments are categorised as ‘fair value

receivables’. Non-derivative financial liabilities are categorised as ‘amortised cosl’. Derivalive financial
through profil and loss’ unless hedge accounting is applied. Hedge accounting is applied for all derivaliv

caps

FAIR VALUES (FINANCIAL ASSETS)

e financial inslrumenls excepl inlerest raie

GROUP GROUP
2010 2009
CARRYING CARRYING
AMOUNT  CARRYING TOTAL AMOUNT CARRYING TOTAL
(EXCLUDING AMOUNT  CARRYING {EXCLUDING AMOUNT CARRYING FAIR
ACCRUALS)  ACCRUALS AMOUNT  FAIRVALUE  ACCRUALS) ACCRUALS AMOUNT VALUE
$000 5000 5000 $000 $000 $000 $000 3000
Current assets
CEIEIEEDEIEELS g 143 114955 114955 54590 . 54,690 54,690
Sherl term deposils . - 100,000 348 100,348 100,348
Loans and receivables:
Trade receivables (nel of
doubtful debts provision) 138,510 - 138,510 138,510 164,333 S 164,333 164,333
Other receivables 40 - 40 40 40 = 40 40
Total 253,362 143 253,505 253,505 319.063 348 318,411 319.411
Non-current assets
Loans and receivables:
Loan lo associale - - . - 4,450 85 4535 4535
Olher receivables 1,428 1,428 1,428 1,440 = 1,440 1440
Total 1,428 - 1,428 1,428 5.890 85 5,975 5975




Notes to the Financial Statements
{or the year ended 30 June 2010

28.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

FAIR VALUES (FINANCIAL LIABILITIES)

GROUP GROUP
2010 2009
CARRYING CARRYING
AMOUNT  CARRYING TOTAL AMOUNT CARRYING TOTAL
(EXCLUDING AMOUNT  CARRYING FAIR {EXCLUDING AMOUNT CARRYING FAIR
ACCRUALS)  ACCRUALS AMOUNT VALUE ACCRUALS) ACCRUALS AMDUNT VALUE
5000 $000 5000 $000 $000 $000 5000 3000

Current liabilities
Trade payables and olher
credilors 131,870 - 121,870 131,870 122,806 . 122,806 122 806
Finance leases 1,836 1,836 1,836 2,356 - 2,356 2.356
Deferred consideration
payable 2,546 - 2,546 2,546 1,026 - 1,026 1,026
Bank loans {235} . (235) (383} - (383) -
Working capital loan (224) . (224) (361} - (361 -
Medium ierm noles -
AUD floaling rate 249,538 2,967 252,505 252522 253.51 2,208 255,719 256,274
Olher 575 - 575 575 575 - 575 575
Total 385,906 2,967 388,873 389,349 379,530 2,208 381,738 383,037
Non-current liabilitles
Deferred consideration
payable 1,655 1,655 1,655 2,393 - 2,393 2,393
Finance leases 1,448 - 1,448 1,448 3,695 - 3695 3,685
Other non-current
payables 592 592 592 627 627 627
Capital bonds - fixed rate 305,908 3,298 309,206 325,603 305,307 3321 308,628 329,667
Senior bonds ~ fixed rale 150,147 2,461 152,608 154,284 144 578 1,105 145,683 148,303
Senior notes - USD fixed
rale 463,165 6,602 469,767 470,058 464,549 6,998 471,547 471,803
Floaling rale noles 1,146,455 6,644 1,153,098 1,205,846 1,183,793 7.648 1,191,441 1,206,851
Medium lerm noles -
GBP fixed rale 246,969 8,810 255,779 279,295 288 787 10,289 209,076 304,940
Total 2,316,339 27,815 2344154 2,438,781 2,393,729 29,361 2,423,090 2,468,379
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for Lhe year ended 30 June 2010

28.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)
FAIR VALUES (FINANCIAL ASSETS)

PARENT PARENT
0 2000
CARRYING CARRYING
AMOUNT CARRYING TOTAL AMOUNT CARRYING TOTAL
(EXCLUDING AMOUNT CARRYING FAIR  (EXCLUDING AMDUNT CARRYING FAIR
ACCRUALS) ACCRUALS AMOUNT VALUE ACCRUALS) ACCRUALS AMOUNT VALUE
$000 5000 5000 $000 $000 000 $060 $000
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 96,791 143 96,934 96,934 38,738 - 38,738 38,738
Sheorl term deposits - - - 100,000 348 100,348 100,348
Loans and receivables:
Advance lo subsidiaries 637,868 - 637,868 637,868 456,479 = 456,479 456,479
Trade receivables (nel of
doubtful debts provision) 76,271 76,271 76,271 83,407 - 83,407 83,407
Qiher receivables 40 - 40 40 40 - 40 40
Total 810,970 143 811,113 811,113 578.664 348 679012 679,012
Non-current assets
Loans and receivables:
Loan Io associate . - - 4,450 85 4,535 4,535
Qlher receivables 1,428 - 1,428 1,428 1,440 1,440 1,440
Total 1,428 - 1,428 1,428 5890 85 5,975 5975
FAIR VALUES (FINANCIAL LIABILITIES)
PARENT PARENT
2019 009
CARRYING CARRYING
AMOUNT CARRYING TOTAL AMOUNT CARRYING TOTAL
(EXCLUDING AMOUNT CARRYING FAR  (EXCLUDING AMOUNT CARRYING FAIR
ACCRUALS) ACCRUALS AMOUNT VALUE ACCRUALS) ACCRUALS AMOUNT VALUE
3000 $000 5000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Current liabilities
Advances from subsidiaries 797,884 - 797,884 797,884 545,017 545,017 545,017
Trade payables and olher
creditors 7,715 77,115 77,715 68,943 - 68,943 68,943
Finance leases 256 - 256 256 125 - 125 125
Deferred consideralion
payable 1,500 - 1,500 1,500 = - -
Bank loans {235) {235) - (383) - (383)
Waorking capilal loan (224) (224) {361) {361) -
Medium term noles - AUD
floating rale 249,538 2,967 252,505 252,522 253511 2.208 255,719 256,274
Total 1,126,434 2,967 1,129,401 1,129,877 866,852 2,208 869,060 870,359
Non-current liabilities
Finance leases 116 - 116 116 352 . 352 352
Other nen-current payabies 592 - 592 592 591 591 591
Capital bonds - fixed rate 305,908 3,208 309,206 325,603 305,307 3,321 308,628 329,667
Senior bonds - fixed rale 150,147 2,469 152,508 154,284 144,578 1,105 145,683 148,303
Senior notes — USD fixed rale 463,165 6,602 469,767 470,058 464 549 6,998 471,547 471,903
Floating rate noles 1,146,455 6,644 1,153,099 1,205,846 1,183,793 7,648 1,191,441 1,206,851
Medium term noles - GBP
fixed rale 246,969 8,810 255,779 279,205 288787 10,289 299 076 304,940
Total 2,313,352 27,815 2,341,167 2,435,794 2,387 957 29,361 241718 2462807
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2010

28.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

FAIR VALUES OF DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

GROUP & PARENT GROUP & PARENT
2010 2009
CARRYING CARRYING
AMOUNT  CARRYING TOTAL AMOUNT CARRYING TOTAL
{EXCLUDING AMOUNT  CARRYING FAIR (EXCLUDING AMOUNT CARRYING FAIR
ACCRUALS)  ACCRUALS AMOUNT VALUE ACCRUALS} ACCRUALS AMOUNT VALUE
5000 $000 5000 $000 $000 5000 5000 $000
Current assets
Cross currency
swaps 11 6 17 17 - - . -
Forward exchange
coniracis - 208 - 208 208
Total 1 6 17 17 208 - 208 208
Non-current assels
Interest rale swaps 2,739 767 3,506 3,506 - -
Cross currency
swaps 47,605 5,940 53,545 53,545 50,952 6,380 57,332 57,332
Forward exchange
conlracts - - - - 393 - 393 393
Total 50,344 6,707 57,051 57,051 51345 6,380 57,725 57.725
Current liabilities
Interest rale swaps 8,138 4,049 12,187 12,187 2,089 725 2,824 2,824
Cross currency
swaps 70 (1,043) (973) {973} a .
Forward exchange
coniracts 154 - 154 154 - - -
Total 8,362 3,006 11,368 11,368 2,098 725 2,824 2,824
Non-current liabilities
Inlerest rale swaps 117,092 6,750 123,842 123,842 91,448 8,926 100,374 100,374
Cross currency
swaps 63,798 (2,224) 61,574 61,574 12,223 (3.687) 8,536 8,536
Forward exchange
conlracls 925 - 925 925 - = - -
Total 181,815 4,526 186,341 186,341 103,671 5,239 108,910 108,910
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28.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

FAIR VALUES (continued)

The following melhods and assumplions were used lo eslimale lhe carrying amount and fair value of each class of financial instrumenl carried al fair
value. Where linancial inslruments are measured af fair value they have been classified according to the lollowing levels,

Level 1: Quoled prices (unadjusled) in aclive markes for identical assels or liabilities; or

Level 2: Inpuls olher than quoted prices included within Level 1 thal are observable for the asset or liability, either direclly (prices) or indireclly (derived
from prices); or

Level 3: Inpuls for the assel o liabillty that are nol based on observable markel data (unobservable inpuls).

The only financial insirumenls held by the group which are measured al fair value are derivatives. Their valuations are based on the level 2 fair value
hierarchy, and were calculated using valuation models applying observable market dala. Some of lhe key observable market dala used is presenled
below. .

GROUP & PARENT GROUP & PARENT
2010 2009

Foreign currency exchange rates

NZD-GBP FX rale 0.45810 0.39225
NZD-USD FX rate 0.68480 0.64605
NZD-AUD FX rale 0.81525 0.80080
Interest rate swap rates

3 month cash rale 3.13000 2.843313
1 year semi-annual swap rale 3.71000 2.99000
2 year semi-annual swap rate 4.07500 3.84000
3 year semi-annual swap rale 4.35000 4 58500
5 year semi-annual swap rate 4.76000 | 5.38000
7 year semi-annual swap rale 5.06000 5.72500
10 year semi-annual swap rale 5.95000 6.07500

The calculalion of fair value for each financial instrument for either measurement or disclosure purposes are explained below. In each case, interest
accrued is included separalely in lhe stalemenl of financial position either in receivables and prepayments for interest receivable or in payables and
aceruals for interest payable,

Loans and receivables, trade payables and other creditors, cash and cash equivalents, short term deposits

The tolal carrying amounl of these ilems is equivalent lo their fair value. Loans include the principal and interest accrued. Bank overdrafis are sel-off
agains| cash balances pursuani to any right of sei-off. Receivables are net of doubtful debts provided.

Bank loans, working capital loans and floating rate notes
The 1olal carrying amount includes the principal, inleres| accrued and unamoriised costs.
Medium term notes

The lolal carrying amounl for the AUD and the GBP medium lerm noles includes the principal converted at coniract rales, inlerest accrued,
unamoriised cosls and a fair value adjustment for the compenenl of the risk that is hedged.

Capital bonds - fixed rate
The total carrying amount includes the principal, inferes! accrued and unamortised cosls.
Senior bonds - fixed rate

The lolal carrying amount includes the principal, interest accrued, unamorlised casts and a fair value adjustment for the componeni of the risk that is
hedged.

Senlor notes - USD fixed rate

The lolal camying amount includes the principal converted al conlracl rales, interesi accrued, unamorlised costs and a fair value adjustment for lhe
componeni of ihe risk [hat is hedged.

Derivalive instruments

niy

The total carrying amount of derivalive insiruments is the same as the fair value and includes interes| accrue
A
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28.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

INTEREST RATE RISK

The group aclively manages inlerest rale exposures in accordance with lreasury policy. In this respecl, at leasi forly percent of all debi must be at
fixed inlerest rates or effectively fixed using interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements, options and olher derivalive inslruments. The main
objeclives are 1o minimise the cosl of lolal debl, control varialions in the inierest expense of lhe debl portfolic from year lo year and to match where
praclicable the inleresl rale risk profile of debt with the risk profile of the group's assets. The freasury policy sels parameters for managing the inlerest
rate maturily profile. The parameters depend upon Lhe Standard and Poor's credit rating and the Reserve Bank of New Zealand conlinuing to
implement monelary policy through adjustments lo (he official cash rate.

The weighted average inlerest rates of borrowings were as follows.

GROUP GROUP
2010 2009
WEIGHTED AVERAGE WEIGHTED AVERAGE

INTEREST RATE FACE VALUE INTEREST RATE FACE VALUE
% $000 % $000
Medium term notes — AUD floating rate 5.04 250,000 3.68 250,000
Capilal bonds - fixed rate 8.00 307,205 8.00 307,205
Senior bonds — fixed rale 7.80 150,000 7.80 150,000
Senior notes — USE fixed rate 5.65 418,315 565 418,315
Floaling rate noles 3.05 1,160,000 339 1,200,000
Medium lerm noles ~ GBP fixed rale 7.63 285,614 7.63 285,614
Other - 575 - 575
2,571,709 2,611,709

PARENT PARENT

2010 2009
WEIGHTED AVERAGE WEIGHTED AVERAGE

INTEREST RATE FACE VALUE INTEREST RATE FACE VALUE
% $000 % $000
Medium lerm notes - AUD flealing rale 5.04 250,000 368 250,000
Capilal bonds — fixed rale 8.00 307,205 8.00 307,205
Senior bonds ~ fixed rale 7.80 150,000 7.80 150,000
Senior notes — USE fixed rale 5,65 418,315 5.65 418,315
Floaling rate noles 3.05 1,160,000 3.38 1,200,000
Medium term notes - GBP fixed rale 7.63 285,614 763 285,614
2,571,134 2,611,134
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28.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

INTEREST RATE RISK (continued)

The weighled average inleresl rates of interest rate swaps were as follows.

GROUP & PARENT GROUP & PARENT
2010 2009
WEIGHTED WEIGHTED WEIGHTED WEIGHTED
AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE
INTEREST RATE  INTEREST RATE NOTIGNAL INTEREST RATE INTEREST RATE NOTIONAL
RECEIVE LEG PAY LEG AMOUNT RECEIE LEG PAY LEG AMOUNT
% % $000 % % 5000
Interest rate swaps (floating Lo fixed)
Maturing in less than 1 year 2.85 6.86 475,000 3am 7.08 100,000
Maluring between 1 and 2 years i 6.61 215,000 3.10 6.86 475,000
Maluring between 2 and 5 years 3.04 6.80 150,000 3.07 6.81 365,000
Maluring after 5 years 3.01 6.95 500,000 3.01 7.12 400,000
1,340,000 1,340,000
Interest rate swaps {fixed 1o floating)
Maluring belween 2 and 5 years 7.80 5.47 150,000 } B} -
Maluring after 5 years . 7.80 5.47 150.000
150,000 150,000
Forward starting interest rate swaps (floating to fixed)
Maturing afler 5 years NiA 6.78 660,000 N/A 6.71 760,000
660,000 760,000
Interest rate cap
Malturing in less than 1 year . . N/A N/A 400,000
- 400,000
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28.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)
INTEREST RATE RISK {continued)

The weighled average interest rates of cross currency swaps were as follows.

GROUP & PARENT GROUP & PARENT
2010 2009
WEIGHTED WEIGHTED WEIGHTED WEIGHTED
AVERACGE AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE
INFEREST ~ AUD/USD/GBP  INTEREST INTEREST AUDUSD/GBP  INTEREST
RATE PRINCIPAL RATE RATE PRINCIPAL RATE
RECEIVE LEG AMOUNT PAY LEG NZD  RECEIVELEG AMDUNT PAY LEG NZD
% 000 % 5000 % 000 % 3000
Cross currency (AUD : NZD}
Maluring in less than 1 year 5.04 203,750 124 250,000 - - -
Maturing between 1 and 2 years - - - - 368 203,750 376 250,000
203,750 250,000 203,750 250,000
Cross currency (USD : NZD}
Maturing between 2 and § years 4,04 15,000 340 22,817 5.04 15,000 337 22817
Maluring afier 5 years 4.50 260,000 310 395,498 5.69 260,000 358 395,498
275,000 418,315 275,000 418,315
Cross currency (GBP : NZD)
Maturing afler 5 years 7.63 115,000 10.84 285,614 7.63 115,000 1084 285614
115,000 285,614 115,000 285,614

Bank loans. working capital loans, AUD medium {erm noles and floating rale notes are at floaling rales. A portion of he floating rale notes are hedged
through inleresl rate swaps which converl the floating rate inlo a fixed rale. The AUD medium lerm noles are fully hedged through cross currency
swaps (eliminaling the foreign currency risk). The majorily of ihe ensuing floaling exposure is hedged through inlerest rale swaps (floaling {0 fixed).
Capital bonds were issued al a fixed interest rate and are not hedged.

Senior bonds were issued al fixed inleres! rales. These bonds are hedged by interest rale swaps (fixed lo floating}.

The senior noles - USD fixed rate are hedged through cross currency swaps (eliminating Lhe foreign currency risk) which conved the interest rale lo
NZD floating. The ensuing floating interest rale exposure is not hedged.

The GBP medium term noles are at fixed interesl rales and are hedged by cross currency swaps (efiminaling the foreign currency risk). The pay leg of
the cross currency swaps in NZD is also at a fixed inieres rale.

The forward starling inlerest rate swaps {lloaling 1o fixed) are used 1o hedge forecasled future floating rate debl.
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28.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The group has conducted transaclions in foreign currencies for the purpose of protecling the NZD cost of capial expendilure. The group has
oulstanding forward exchange contracts. These are used o hedge forecasted foreign cuirency exposure arising oul of the capilal expendilure
programme. Hence al balance date there is no significant exposure lo foreign currency risk. The spot rates shown in ihe table below are as al the

balance dale for each period disclosed.

GROUP & PARENT GROUP & PARENT
210 2009

MARKTO MARK TO

WEIGHTED MARKET WEIGHTED MARKET

AVERAGE  GAIN(LOSS) AVERAGE  GAIN/LOSS)

BUY EXCHANGE NZD BUY EXCHANGE NZD

CURRENCY 000 SPOT RATE RATE 5000 000__ SPOT RATE RATE $000

EUR 716 0.56 0.50 {157) 465 0.46 0.49 71

uso 13,487 0.68 0.61 {923) 15,431 0.65 0.61 524

AUD - - 78 0.80 0.85 6

Total (1,080) 601
CREDIT RISK

In ihe normal course of business, the group is exposed to credil risks from energy retailers, financial inslitutions and cuslomers. The group has credil
policies, which are used to manage the exposure to credit risks. As parl of these policies, the group can only have exposures lo financial instilulions
having al least a credil rating of A+ long term from Slandard & Poor's {or equivalent rating). In addition, limits on exposures to {inancial inslitulions
have been sef by lhe board of directors and are monitored on a regular basis. In this respect, the group minimises ils credil risk by spreading such
exposures across a range of instilulions. The group does nol anlicipate non-performance by any of these financial inslitulions.

The group has some concentration of credit exposures wilh a few large energy retailers and large energy cuslomers. To minimise ihis risk, the group
performs credit evaluations on all energy relailers and large energy cusiomers and requires a bond or olher form of securily where deemed necessary.
The group places ils cash deposits wilh a small number of banking institutions and limils ihe amount deposited with each inslitulion. The maximum
exposure to credit nsk is represenled by Lhe fair value of each financial inslrument.

GROUP PARENT
010 2009 2010 2009
FAIR VALUE FAIR VALUE FAIR VALUE FAIR VALUE
$000 5000 5000 $000
Cash and cash equivalents 114,955 54,680 96,934 38738
Sherl lerm deposits o 100,348 - 100,348
Loans and receivables 139,978 170,348 715,607 545,901
Interes! rate swaps 3,506 - 3,506 =
Cross currency swaps 53,562 97,332 53,562 57332
Forward exchange contracls 601 - 601
The ageing of trade receivables al balance dale was:
GROUP PARENT
2010 2009 2010 2009
CARRYING CARRYING CARRYING CARRYING
AMOUNT AMDUNT AMOUNT AMOUNT
$000 $000 $000 $000
Nol past due 120,367 138,900 70,142 77,786
Past due 1-30 days 9,308 15,915 1,533 700
Pasl due 31-120 days 4,114 5,561 1,440 1,162
Past due more than 120 days 9,578 9,853 6,989 6,735
Total 143,367 170,229 80,104 86,383

The group holds a provision for doubtful debts against he amounls disclosed above of $4.9 million (2009: $5.9 million).
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28.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidily risk is the risk that lhe group may encounter difficulty in raising funds at shorl nolice lo mest its financial commitments as they fall due. In order
lo reduce the exposure Lo liquidily risk, the group has access lo undrawn commitled lines of credit of $325 million {30 June 2009: $325 million)

The day-to-day liquidily exposure is managed by ensuring that sufficient levels of liquid assets and committed facilities are maintained for the next four
lo five weeks based on daily rolling operational cash flow forecasls. Shorl lerm liquidily crisis management is monilored by ensuring sufficieni borrowing
capacily and liquid assels are available as determined from a monthly rolling 18 month cash flow forecast. The lang term liquidily exposure is managed
by ensuring estimated deficils in net cash flow are able to be met as deiermined by Ihe yearly rolling five year cash flow forecasl.

PAYABLE PAYABLE TOTAL
GROUP PAYABLE WITHIN ~ BETWEEN1AND  BETWEENZAND  PAYABLE AFTER  CONTRACTUAL
2010 1YEAR 2YEARS 5 YEARS 5YEARS  CASHFLOWS
$000 $000 $000 5000 $000
Non derivative financial liabllities
Trade payables and other credilors 131,870 - - - 131,870
Finance leases 2,056 996 580 - 3,632
Medium term noles — AUD lloating rate 263,540 - 9 . 263,540
Capital bonds - fixed rale 24,576 331,849 - - 356,425
Senior bonds - fixed rale 15,739 15,739 189,347 - 220,825
Senior noles - USD fixed rate 22,707 22,707 87,265 461,198 593,878
Floating rale noles 49,222 56,535 206,451 1,386,744 1,698,952
Medium lerm notes — GBP fixed rale 19,142 19,140 57,427 327,603 423,312
Olher 575 - - - §75
Derivative financial (assets) / liabilities
Cross currency swaps (USD : NZD)
Inflow (22,707} (22,707) {87,266) {461,198) {593,878)
Outflow 18,508 21,575 94,636 490,099 624,818
Cross currency swaps {AUD : NZD)
Inflow (263,540} - . - {263,540)
Cutflow 260,147 - - - 260,147
Cross currency swaps (GBP ; NZD}
Inflow {19,142} {19,140} {57,427) (327,603) (423,312)
Outflow 30,973 31,058 92,920 401,955 556,906
Forward exchange contracts
Inflow (1,482} - (22,193) - (23,675)
Outflow 1,482 - 22,193 - 23,675
Net settled derivatives
Interest rale swaps 41,686 29,140 57,431 17,387 145,644
575,352 486,892 641,365 2,296,185 3,999,794
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28.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

LiQUIDITY RISK (continued)

PAYABLE PAYABLE TOTAL
GROUP PAYABLEWITHIN ~ BETWEEN1AND  BETWEENZAND PAYABLE AFTER  CONTRACTUAL
2008 1YEAR 2YEARS 5YEARS S5YEARS  CASHFLOWS
$000 $000 $000 $000 3000
Non derivative financial liabilities
Trade payables and other credilors 122,806 . - = 122,806
Finance leases 2,794 2313 1,696 - 6.803
Medium term noles - AUD flozling rale 12,064 267474 - - 279,538
Capilal bonds - fixed rale 24,576 24,576 331.849 - 381,001
Senior bonds — fixed rale 10,335 11,700 35,100 155,850 212,985
Senior notes - USD fixed rale 24,069 24,060 93,671 911,760 653,569
Floaling rale notes 85,236 54,261 251.115 1,502,695 1,893,307
Medium term noles — GBP fixed rate 22,355 22,355 67.065 404,955 516,730
Other 575 - - - 575
Derivative financial (assets) / liabilities
Cross currency swaps (USD : NZD)
Infiow {24,089) (24,069) (93,671} {511,760) {653,569)
Oulflow 15.736 22,280 111,452 533,263 682,731
Cross currency swaps {AUD | NZD)
Inflow (12,064) (267 .474) - - {279.538)
Outflow 10,814 262,274 273,088
Cross currency swaps (GBP : NZD)
Inflow {22,355) (22.355) (67,085) (404,955) (516,730)
Cutflow 30,973 30.972 93,005 432,929 587,879
Forward exchange contracts
Infiow (4,244) - (21,882) - (26,1286)
Outflow 4,244 - 21,882 - 26126
et settled derivatives
interesl rale swaps 48,345 38,179 18,387 3.812 108,723
352,190 446 555 842 604 2,628,549 4,269,898
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28, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

LIQUIDITY RISK (continued)

PAYABLE PAYABLE TOTAL
PARENT PAYABLEWITHIN ~ BETWEEM1AND BETWEEN2AND  PAYABLE AFTER  CONTRACTUAL
2010 1YEAR 2YEARS 5 YEARS 5 YEARS CASH FLOWS
$000 $000 $000 $000 5000
Non derivative financial llabilities
Trade payables and olher credilors 71,7115 - - - 17,715
Finance leases 278 121 - - 399
Medium lerm notes - AUD floating rate 263,540 - - 263,540
Capilal bonds - flixed rale 24,576 331,849 - - 356,425
Senior bonds - fixed rale 15,739 15,739 189,347 - 220,825
Senigr notes - USD fixed rale 22,707 22,707 87,266 461,198 593,878
Floaling rate noles 49,222 56,535 206,451 1,386,744 1,698,952
Medium lerm noles — GBP fixed rate 19,142 19,140 57,427 327,603 423,312
Derivative financial (assets) / liabilitles
Cross currency swaps (USD : NZD}
Inflow (22,707 (22,707) {87,266) (461,198) (593,878}
Cutflow 18,508 21,575 94,636 490,099 624,818
Cross currency swaps (AUD : NZD)
Infiow {263,540} - - - (263,540)
Oulllow 260,147 - - 260,147
Cross currency swaps (GBP : NZDj)
Inflow {19,142) (19,140 (57,427) (327,603) {423,312)
Oulllow 30,973 31,058 92,920 401,955 556,906
Forward exchange conlracts
Inflow (1,482) - {22,193) - {23,675)
Oulflow 1,482 22,193 - 23,675
Net settled derivatives
Interesl rale swaps 41,686 29,140 57,431 17,387 145,644
518,844 486,017 640,785 2,296,185 3,941,821
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28.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

LIQUIDITY RISK (continued)

PAYABLE PAYABLE TOTAL
PARENT PAYABLEWITHIN ~ BETWEEN1AND  BETWEENZ2AND  PAYABLEAFTER  CONTRACTUAL
2000 1YEAR 2YEARS 5 YEARS 5YEARS CASH FLOWS
$000 $000 $000 3000 $000
Non detivative financial liabilities
Tradke payables and olher crediiors 68,943 - - . £8.943
Finance leases 168 279 101 o 548
Medium term noies - AUD feating rale 12,064 267 474 - - 279,538
Capital bonds - fixed rale 24,576 24,576 331,848 - 381,001
Senior bonds - fixed rate 10,335 11,700 35,100 155,850 212,985
Senior notes -~ USD fixed rate 24,065 24,069 93,671 511,760 653,569
Floating rate noles 85,236 54,261 251,115 1,502,695 1,893,307
Medium term noles - GBP fixed rale 22,355 22,355 67,065 404,955 516,730
Derivative financial (assels) / liabilities
Cross currency swaps (USD : NZD)
Inflow (24,069) (24,069) {93,671) (511,760) (653,569)
Outllow 15.736 22,280 111,452 533,263 682,731
Cross currency swaps (AUD - NZD}
Inflow (12,064) (267.474) - - (279,538)
Cuiflow 10,814 262,274 - - 273,088
Cross currency swaps {(GBP : NZD)
Inflow {22,355) {22,355) {67.065) (404,955) {516,730)
Outflow 30,973 30,972 93,005 432,929 587,879
Forward exchange contracls
inflow {4.244) g {21,882) - {26,126)
Outflow 4,244 - 21,882 - 26,126
Net settled derivatives
Inlerest rale swaps 48,345 38,179 18,387 3812 108.723
205,126 444,521 841,009 2,628,549 4,209,205
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28.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

HEDGE ACCOUNTING AND SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

The sensilivity analysis has been delermined based on the exposure to inlerest rates and foreign exchange rates for both derivalives and non-
derivalive instruments at balance date. It is assumed thal the amount of the liability at balance dale was oulstanding for the whole year. A len percent
and a one percenl increase or decrease is used for foreign exchange rales and interes! rales respeclively and these changes represenl managemenl's
current assessment of lhe reasonably possible change over a year.

CASH FLOW SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS FOR VARIABLE RATE INSTRUMENTS

Interest rale swaps hedging the floating rate debl are hedge accounled and trealed as cash flow hedges and hence any changes in inleresl rate would
have no material impacl on profils as changes in the fair value of these swaps are laken lhrough other comprehensive income where the hedge is an
efieclive hedge. The fair value of these interesl rate swaps is a $92.8 million loss (2009: $84.4 million loss). A fall of 1% in interest rale would resull in
a loss in other comprehensive income of $36.7 million {2009: $42.9 million) whereas an increase of 1% in interest rate would resull in a gain in olher
comprehensive income of $34.9 million (2009: $40.7 million).

Forward starling inleres! rate swaps hedging the forecasled floaling rate debt are also hedge accounied and Ireated as cash flow hedges and hence
any changes in inlerest rale would have no material impact on profits as changes in lhe fair value of these swaps are laken through equity where the
hedge is an effeclive hedge. The fair value of lhese inleresl rate swaps is a $43.2 million loss {2009: 36.7 million loss). A fall of 1% in interest rale
would resull in a loss in olher comprehensive income of $30.8 million (2009: $32.8 million) whereas an increase of 1% in inleres! rale would result in a
gain in olher comprehensive income of $28.5 million (2009 $29.9 million).

Floating rate noles of $45 million {2009: $85 million) have nol been hedged and hence a fall of 1% in inlerest rate would increase piofit by $0.5 million
(2009: $0.9 million) whereas an increase of 1% in interesl rale would decrease profit by $0.5 million (2009: $0.9 million). The inleresl expense
movement is calculaled for one year and proportionally allocated over the number of days, if malurily occurs within the period

FAIR VALUE SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS FOR FIXED RATE INSTRUMENTS

Interesl rale swaps hedging the fixed interest rale bonds are hedge accounted and Irealed as fair value hedges and hence any changes in inlerest rales
would have no malerial impaci on profits arising from changes in fair value as Ihe changes in fair value of ihe swaps would be ofisel by changes in the
fair value of the underlying exposure for the NZ$150 million senior bonds {2009 NZ$150 million senior bonds) as lhe hedge is an effeciive hedge. The
fair value of these interesl rale swaps is a $3.5 million profit (2009: $2.1 million loss) However, since the interest raie is converled to floaling, a falf of
1% in inleresl rale would increase profil by $1.5 million (2009: $1.5 million) and an increase of 1% in inleres! rate would decrease profit by $1.5 miltion
(2009: $1.5 million). The inlerest expense movement is calculaled for one year and proportionally allocaled over Ihe number of days, if maturily occurs
within the period.

FAIR VALUE SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS FOR CROSS CURRENCY SWAPS (CASH FLOW HEDGE / FAIR VALUE HEDGE)

Cross currency swaps hedging the loreign cumency denominated debt are hedge accounted and Wrealed either as a cash flow hedge or a fair value
hedge depending upon the risk being hedged Any changes in fair value arising out of foreign exchange movements would have no impact on profit as
the receive leg of lhe cross currency swap exaclly offsets the inleresl payments of ihe underlying exposure. The fair value of these cross cuirency
swaps is a $7.0 million loss (2009: $48.8 million gain). However, changes in 1he interest rale would impac! profit as shown in Lhe lable below. The
impacl on profil is calculaled for one year and proporlionally allocaled over lhe number of days, if maturity occurs wilhin the period. Any changes in the
inlerest rale would have no impacl on profits in relalion lo lhe GBP: NZD cross currency swaps as (he NZ0 payment leg is at a fixed inlerest rale.

GROUP & PARENT GROUP & PARENT
2010 2009
-1% CHANGE +1% CHANGE -1% CHANGE +1% CHANGE
ININTEREST RATE  ININTERESTRATE  ININTERESTRATE  ININTEREST RATE
3000 $000 $000 3000
Cross currency swaps
AUD : NZD 190 {190} 250 {250)
USD : NZD 4,183 (4.183) 4,183 (4,183}
Total impact on profit increase / (decrease) 4,373 {4,373 4433 {4.433)

=
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28.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

HEDGE ACCOUNTING AND SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS {continued)

FAIR VALUE SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS FOR FORWARD EXCHANGE CONTRACTS (CASH FLOW HEDGES})

Forward exchange conlracts hedging the forecasted foreign currency exposure arising out of the capital expendilure programme are {reated as cash
flow hedges and hence any changes in foreign exchange rates would have no malerial impaci on profils as changes in the fair value of these contracls
are taken Lhrough other comprehensive income where lhe hedge is an effeciive hedge. The fair value of these forward exchange contracis is a $1.1
million loss {2009: $0.6 million gain).

GROUP & PARENT GROUP & PARENT
2010 2008
-10% CHANGE ~ +10% CHANGE  -10% CHANGE  +10% CHANGE
INFX RATE IN FX RATE IN FX RATE 1N FX RATE
$000 $000 5000 $000
Forward exchange contracts
EUR 142 (118) 112 (92)
Usp 2,181 {1,739) 2,469 {2,020}
AUD - - 11 )]
Total impact on other comprehensive income increasef(decrease) 2,323 {1,855) 2,592 (2121)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The capital management policies are formulaled and applied lo he Veclor group as a whole. The group's objeclives when managing capital are:

- ltosafeguard the entily's abilily {o conlinue as a going concern so thal il can conlinue to provide retums for shareholders and benefils for other
stakehoiders; and

1o provide an adequale return lo shareholders by pricing producls and services commensurate with the ievel of risk.

The group manages Ihe capital structure and makes adjuslments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and he risk characlerislics of the
underlying assets. In order lo maintain or adjusl he capilal struclure, the group may adjusl the amounl of dividends paid to sharehalders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assels lo reduce debt.

The group monitors capital on the basis of ihe net debl [o nel debt plus equity ralio. This ralio is calculaled as nel debt divided by nel debt plus equity,
where net debt is calculaled as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and short ferm deposils.

The nel debl lo net debt plus equity ratios al 30 June 2010 and 30 June 2009 were as follows:

GROUP

s sio
Current borrowings 249,654 575
Non-current borrowings 2,312,644 2.639,781
Total borrowings 2,562,298 2,640,356
Less: cash and cash equivalenis {114,812) (54,690)
Less: shori lerm deposils - (100,000
Net debt 2,447,486 2,485,668
Tolal equity 2,084,208 2,058,893
Net debt plus equity 4,531,694 4,544 550
Net debt to net debt plus equity ratio 54.0% 54.7%

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

Veclor Limiled has provided guaranlees on behalf of Vector Gas Limiled for the sale and purchase of gas. These guarantees are regarded as insurance
contracts. No claims have been made against the guaraniees hence there is no impact on the statement of financial position of the group and the
parent.
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29.  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The direclors are aware of claims thal have been made againsi the group and, where appropriale, have recognised provisions for (hese within note 22
of these financial slatemenis No malerial conlingenl liabililies requiring disclosure have been idenlified.

30.  TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The group has engaged in the following {ransaclions wilh the Auckiand Energy Consumer Trust (AECT) which is the majority shareholder of Vector
Limited.

PARENT
2010 2009
$000 $000
Payment of dividend to lhe AECT 103,263 99,508

Note 16 identifies all entilies including associates, partnerships and joint venlures in which the group has an interest. Al of these entilies are relaled
parties of he parent. Other than the directors lhemselves, lhere are no additional related parties with whom material lransactions have laken place.

The group and pareni entered inlo the following lransaclions wilh subsidiaries, associates and other related companies.

GROUP PARENT
2010 2009 2010 2009
$00d 3000 $000 $000

Cash advances to subsidiaries - - 207,691 206,534
Loans to parentfrepaid by subsidiaries - - 371,428 1,135,086
Employee costs recharged fo subsidiaries - - 13,533 13,423
Managemeni fees payable by subsidiaries - - 41,548 43,394
Income [rom financial services provided o Slream Informalion Parinershup - - 70 70
Sale of gas dislribution services to Veclor Gas Limiled - S 4,346 4506
Interesl receivable from Veclor Communicalions Limited - - 2,900 2954
Purchase of telecommunicalions services from Vector Communicalions Limited o - 2,680 2,508
Inceme from call cenlre services provided lo Vector Communications Limited - - 123 a4
Dividends received from Tree Scape Limited - S 200 .
Furchase of vegetation managemenl services from Tree Scape Limiled 4,892 3,545 4,892 3545
fitrz:i:[iézse of eleclricity melers and mefering services from Energy Intellecl 1,683 1474 . )
Loan to and inlerest receivable from Advanced Metering Services Limited - 4535 5 4535
Purchase of management services from Advanced Melering Services Limiled 5,929 10,311 5 -
fic[inni\lzciistrative and olher services provided to Advanced Melering Services 251 1320 a2 1320
Sales of operations and mainlenance services lo Kapuni Energy Joinl Venture 1,167 1,097

Purchases of electricily and steam from Kapuni Energy Joint Venlure 12,972 11,330 - -
Adminislrative and olher services provided lo Kapuni Energy Joinl Venlure 66 62 - .

Gas sales to Kapuni Energy Joint Venture are transacted direclly with Vector Kapuni Limiled, a subsidiary of the group which is the 50% joint venlure
pariner in Kapuni Energy Joini Venlure. Accordingly, such sales are now {ully eliminated on consolidation in the consclidated financial statements.

Tax losses of $2.6 million (with a tax effec of $0.8 million) have been iransferred during the peried from Vector Communications Lirnited for utilisation
by Veclor Limited to parlially offset against its taxable profils for the period,

During January 2010, Veclor Limited acquired a further 50% shareholding in Advanced Melering Services Limited for deferred consideralion of $1.5
million. The deferred consideralion is payable contingenl upon Lhe company achieving a targel for the number of smarl melers installed in New
Zealand.

During April 2010. the group subscribed to a rights issue by NZ Windfarms Limiled and also acquired shares which were nol laken up in lhe rights
issue in ils capacity as underwriter of the issue. In total the group acquired 47,980,362 addilional shares for $7,197.054, al 15 cents per share
increasing the group's sharehoiding from 19.99% lo 22.11%. Also during Lhe year, the group granted NZ Windfarms Limiled a loan of $6.5 million on
commercial lerms which was repaid in full in May 2010.
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30.  TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

The following amounts were receivable by/{payable by) the parent from/(to) subsidiaries at balance dale:

PARENT
2010 2009
$000 $000

Receivable by the parent from:
MEL Network Limiled 67,220 67,220
Poihipi Land Limited 8 B
Veclor Communicalions Limited 67,663 54,907
Broadband Services Limiled 366 366
Veclor Siream Limiled 5,621 5,057
Vector Gas Conlracts Limited 546,079 359,125
Elect Dala Service {Auslralia) Pty Limited - 595
On Gas Limited - 36.421
Advanced Metering Services Limiled 18,134 -

705,088 523,699
Less: provision agains! advances lo subsidiaries {67,220) (67,220)
Total advances to subsidiaries 637,868 456479
Payabie by the parent to:
NGC Hoidings Limiled (251,311) {211,449)
Veclor Gas Investmenls Limiled {3,062) {563)
Vector Kapuni Limiled (18,998) (7.024)
Vector Management Services Limiled (4,822) {5,396)
NGC Metering Limiled {22,422) {37.822)
Vector Gas Limiled (264,375) (54,638)
Mercury Geotherm Limited {1,527) (1.314)
On Gas Limiled {1,047) -
Elect Data Service (Australia) Pty Limiled (2,186} .
Auckland Generation Limiled {13,334 {13.334)
MEL Silversiream Limiled (371) {(371)
Salamanca Holdings Limited (9 9)
Veclor Metering Dala Services Limiled {214,420) {213,097)
Total advances from subsidiaries (797,884} {545,017)

AL 30 June 2010, there are no malerial outstanding balances due 1o or from asscciales and joint venlures which are relaled parlies of Veclor Limited.

The above advances lo or from subsidiaries are non-interes| bearing and repayable on demand, with the exceplion of |he receivable balance from
Vector Communicalions Limited for which interest is accrued at the BKBM rale plus 2% per annum. Advances lo subsidiaries are at arms’ lenglh.

A provision of $67.2 mullion (2009: $67.2 milion) is held againsl Veclor Limiled’s receivable from MEL Network Limited. No refaled party debls have

been writlen off or forgiven during the period. Veclor Limited has provided guaraniees on behalf of Veclor Gas Limited for ihe sal
These guarantees are regarded as insurance conlracts.

The group may {ransact on an arms’ lenglh basis with companies in which directors have a disclosed inleres.

e and purchase of gas.
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3.  KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

This {able includes directors fees and remuneration of the group CEO and lhe members of his execulive team during the periods presenled.

GROUP PARENT

2010 2009 2010 2009

$000 $000 $000 $000
Direclors lees 987 800 900 818
Salary and other short-lerm employee benefils 5106 3,336 5,106 3.336
Posl employment benefils k| 49 3 49
Redundancy and terminalicn benefits 447 ar4 447 374
Olher long term benefits - o . 8
Total 6,543 4,659 6,456 4,577

J2.  EVENTS AFTER BALANCE DATE

In July 2010, the group established a new $50 million senior credil facility and a new $125 million working capital facility. These facililies will expire in
Augusl 2013 and December 2013 respeclively. The facililies replace lhe exisling $125 million senior credit facilities and $150 million working capilal

facilily thal were due lo expire in August 2010 and December 2010 respeciively.

On 27 August 2010, the board declared a final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2010 of 7.5 cents per share,

No adjustments are required lo these financial statements in respect of ihese events.
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